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Directors’ Report
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine,
starch-based sweetener, modified starch and ancillary corn-based and corn-refined
products. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

The Group’s revenue is derived from two business segments, namely (i) upstream
products and (i) fermented and downstream products, the production activities of
which are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year is set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 17. The Environmental and Sustainability
Report set out on pages 18 to 29 provides a review on the Group’s environmental
policies, compliance by the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group and key relationships with the major stakeholders
to the Group (including its employees, customers and suppliers). The Risk Review
Report set out on pages 30 to 33 provides a comprehensive review on principle risks
and uncertainties facing the Group.

The Group is committed to complying with all environmental policies and other
relevant laws and regulations related to its business operating environment. In
addition, the Group also has an internal laboratory to monitor the quality of our
products perpetually in order to ensure that our products comply with national
standards, including food safety standards.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the notes 27 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements. The related party
transactions as set out in notes 27 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted fully exempt connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Dividends

In view of the increasing infection cases of COVID-19 in many cities in the PRC, the
Board considers that it may be more challenging to our business and, therefore,
tends to have more conservative approach on cash management. The Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.69 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 9 June 2022. The proposed final dividend, if approved
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (‘AGM”), is expected to
be paid on or about 15 July 2022 in cash.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xianggang

Mr. Yu Yingquan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Professor Hua Qiang

Mr. Sun Mingdao

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

By virtue of Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), Mr. Tian Qixiang, Mr. Liu Xianggang and Mr. Sun Mingdao will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

None of the above Directors proposed for re-election has entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all of them are independent.

Directors’ Interest in Transaction, Arrangement or Contract
of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the financial year.
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Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, the Directors and other officers of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the Company’s assets from and against all
losses and liabilities which they may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties,
excluding any losses and liabilities that may arise from fraud and dishonesty. The
above indemnity provision was in force during the course of the year and remained
in force as of the date of this annual report. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance for the purpose of indemnifying for
losses in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and other officers of
the Company.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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RBEERMAF 191 ARDEEREMSHEA
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Name of The Company/ Capacity/ Number and class of Percentage of
Director associated corporation nature of interest securities held shareholding
EE s *AE/HEEE g/ EatE FEEFYERER hRET DL
(note 1) (note 3)
(PE1) (F5¥3)
Mr. Tian Qixiang The Company Interest in a controlled corporation 3,705,385,194 ordinary shares 61.81%
of HK$0.10 each (L) (note 2)
HERLE E/NS| e AERES 3,705,385,194f B IR EE0. 108 7T 61.81%
HERR(L) (H5E2)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 131 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 54.58%
REEEERRAE BHEBA 131REREBEIZETHNEERL 54.58%
Mr. Gao Shijun Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 60 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 25.00%
BEELE REEEERRE BHEBA 60l SR EEIETNEERL 25.00%
Mr. Yu Yingguan Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 0.42%
FHEREE BREEERAR BHREEA IREREEBIETNEBRLY 0.42%
Notes: BT -
1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or the (1) FHI R TNEEFNALBRERAER ZE
relevant associated corporation. AR o
©) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited — (2) LWERMBEREEERRABDFR  IREE

is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Tian is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO.

()] The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,994,132,043 shares in
issue of the Company as at 31 December 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor their respective associates had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19
May 2017. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group and to enable the Group to attract, recruit and retain senior
management, key employees and human resources that are valuable or
potentially valuable to the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest; (b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.
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3. The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which may

6

be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
number of issued Shares from time to time. The total number of the Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding,
for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group)
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
Shares as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued Share for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding independent non-executive director of the Company
who or whose associates is the proposed grantee of the options). In addition,
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the issued Shares at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval of the Company in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the directors of the Company, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the offer for the
grant of the option or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever
is earlier, subject to the provisions for early termination as stated in the Share
Option Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 28
days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8. The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board but shall

not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 18 May 2027.

As at 31 December 2021, no share option had been granted under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company.

Interests of the Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following person,

other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, has an interest or a short

position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO; or as otherwise

being notified to the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to

be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:
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Number
of shares/ Percentage of
Name of Capacity/ underlying issued
shareholder nature of interest shares share capital
15,18 RA HBE81T
KRRETE B3 #ENE KRH &R REFSL
(note 1) (note 3)
(MF=E1) (MF5E3)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner (note 2) 3,705,385,194 (L) 61.81%
REERABRAT EmEs A (izE2)
Notes: M 5
) The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares of the Company. (1) FEILIEREARTRGONER -

@

These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited
is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang, an executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” above.

The percentage of issued share capital is calculated on the basis of 5,994,132,043
shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there were no any other persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which
enables the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Qixiang
Chairman
Shouguang, The People’s Republic of China

18 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND COMPANY DEVELOPMENT
Overview

Year 2021 was a year with high uncertainties, issues, and disputes. First, the new
COVID-19 variants, Delta and Omicron, dashed people’s hope to end the pandemic.
Second, the level of trade and political dispute between China and US became more
serious. Third, the frequency of extreme weather increased and affected more areas.
Although there was a small scale outbreak of COVID-19 in the second half of 2021 in
China, it did not obstruct Chinese economic recovery.

With the contributions from our competent management team, the performance
of the Group in 2021 was not materially affected by COVID-19. The Group strived
many efforts to increase our product output ratio and production volume without
compromising quality. The Group achieved a turnover of more than RMB11 billion for
the first time.

Our major product, cornstarch, is a base material for the production of consumer
products. Cornstarch may seem insignificant but it is hard to replace. Our other
products, such as lysine, gluten meal and sweeteners, are non-reusable. Therefore,
the volume of consumption of these products was not materially affected in a good
time or in a bad time.

In the second half of 2021, certain Chinese provinces imposed electricity rationing
mandates on different industrial sectors to meet emission targets. During the
electricity rationing period, the Group did not have any material adverse financial
impacts. We adjusted our production schedule to meet our sales targets. On the
other hand, the customers were worried about they could still obtain enough supply
from the market. During the electricity rationing period, the market atmosphere for
our products was better than other times. We took this opportunity to accept more
purchase orders from our customers. As a result, our inventory level was maintained
at a low level during this period.

We are cautiously optimistic about the business in 2022. Many factors affect
the outlook for various industries. Firstly, the carbon-neutral policy may affect
the entities’ operation as well as the increase in utilities expenses. Secondly, the
downturn of the pork market would affect the demand for lysine products. Thirdly,
the resurgence of COVID-19 variants may affect consumers’ confidence. Finally, the
intensifying geopolitical conflict affects food prices and shipping costs globally. The
management team considers that the above factors may have both positive and
negative impacts on our business. We are confident that we can turn threats into
opportunities. Our competitive advantages include our large scale of production, low
energy consumption ratio, having a competent team for monitoring market prices
and good at market prediction. We will continue to use a robust approach to manage
the business and increase our efficiency. We will also increase our commitment to
product development and research abilities.
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Business Development

The expansion of production facilities in producing 20,000 tonnes lactic acid and
5,000 tonnes polylactic acid is still undergoing. The management team expected that
the Group will start lactic acid and polylactic acid trial production in the second and
fourth quarters of 2022 respectively.

We established a joint venture company (Shouguang Juneng Musashino
Biotechnology Co., Ltd) with a Japanese leading lactic acid and lactic acid derivatives
company (Musashino Chemical Laboratory, Ltd,) (“JV Partner”) in 2020. In view of
the serious outbreak of COVID-19 in Japan in the past two years, the process of
this expansion project lags behind the original timetable. Both parties are still willing
to carry out this project as originally planned. As at the date of this report, we have
selected some production sites for environmental impact assessment. We will work
together with our JV Partner and government authorities for the selection of the
appropriate production site. This expansion project is a cooperation project with an
overseas investor. Policies blow cold and hot and are unpredictable under the threat
of new variants of COVID-19, for example, sudden travelling restriction or COVID-19
screening. Therefore, we do not set a completion date for this expansion project at
this stage.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Upstream Products

The business performance of upstream products, representing cornstarch and its
by-products, was outstanding during the year under review. Adverse factors, such
as COVID-19 and electricity rationing, did not affect our business performance.
The recovery of pig-breeding activity increased demand for the raw materials for
the production of animal feeds directly. Besides, the electricity rationing measures
imposed by the local government affected the confidence in the stable supply of
goods which caused an increase in purchase orders or early delivery requests from
customers.

Fermented and Downstream Products

Fermented and downstream products refer to the products derived from cornstarch.
Our fermented and downstream products can be used in different industries, such
as animal feeding and breeding, paper manufacturing, food and beverage and
chemicals.

Lysine is a raw material for the production of animal feeds. As explained above, the
market demand for lysine increased substantially resulted from the recovery of the
pig-breeding industry. During the year under review, certain large-scale overseas
lysine manufacturers suspended lysine production. Chinese lysine filled the market
discrepancies. Naturally, we recorded a substantial increase in export sales.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Starch-based sweetener is mainly used in the food and beverage industry and,
to a certain extent, is a substitute for cane sugar. During the year under review,
the Group adjusted our liquid and crystallised output ratio. The cost per unit of
liquid sweetener was lower than the crystallised one because the crystallisation of
sweetener consumed more energy. The percentage of liquid sweetener increased to
approximately 69.4% of total starch-based sweetener sales volume (2020: 58.7%).

Looking forward, the business performances of lysine and starch-based sweetener
are still subject to the industry’s operating ratio and oversupply problem. Our
competent management team has to monitor the market condition of each
product and adjust our production schedule or product mix to maintain profitability
accordingly.

The Group reduced its modified starch production target because the city’s sewage
treatment plant reduced its sewage treatment capacity in the second half of 2021.
The sewage produced during the production of modified starch was treated in the
Group’s internal sewage facilities at first. The sewage was then disposed to the city’s
sewage treatment plant for subsequent treatment. It is expected the modified starch
production will still be subject to the city’s sewage treatment capacity in 2022. The
Group would work together with the municipal government to achieve the sewage
disposal target and our new production output target.

Other fermented and downstream products represented new biobased materials.
Lactic acid and its derivative products are one of them. The turnover contribution
of these products to the Group was still small as compared with other traditional
products.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Overview

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB11,639,315,000 (2020: RMB8,892,261,000). Gross profit of the Group increased
significantly by 70.1% to approximately RMB952,211,000 (2020: RMB559,775,000).

Profit after taxation increased significantly to RMB402,830,000 (2020:
RMB207,039,000). Basic earnings per share of the Company was RMBO0.0577 per
share based on the weight average number of 5,994,132,000 ordinary shares (2020:
RMBO0.0317 per share based on the weight average number of 5,995,591,000
ordinary shares).
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Segment Performance

Upstream products

Revenue WA
Gross profit E=F
Gross profit margin EF=

DERIR
_EHEam

2021 2020

B ZEIEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETT ARET T

8,576,482 6,738,510

496,351 418,556

5.8% 6.2%

Revenue of upstream products increased significantly by 27.3% to
RMB8,576,482,000 (2020: RMB6,738,510,000). The gross profit margin of this
business segment decreased by 0.4 percentage point to 5.8%. The average selling
price of our upstream products was driven by both the strong demand and the
increased corn kernel cost and utilities expenses during the year under review.
The Group successfully passed the increased cost to our customers. The average
selling price of cornstarch was about RMB2,988 (2020: RMB2,347) per tonne. The
sales volume of cornstarch were approximately 1,951,074 tonnes (2020: 1,915,794
tonnes).

Fermented and downstream products

THERNKAKXRELEA27.3%E AR
8,576,482, 000t (ZZEZZTF : AR
6,738,510,0007T) ° A% BRI EF =R /L0.4
BEDMES.8% - REBEER > BHMHFERYU
BERNRARAEEEMIIEMES T LiE
G FEIEE A EEKIN A G N R A ER
ERF - RKBMNFHEBRSMEAR2988
T (ZEIEE D ARE2,34770) « TR BIHHIEH
B#7%1,951,074M8 (ZZ ZE4F 1 1,915,794M) o

BERTHER

2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F AR#FT

Revenue A
- Lysine —fBaE 2,224,230 1,442,844
— Starch-based sweetener —RRADHE 519,544 357,781
— Modified starch — MR 267,463 312,025
— Others — = Ath 51,596 41,101
Total 4B 3,062,833 2,153,751
Gross profit EH) 455,860 141,219
Gross profit margin EF=E 14.9% 6.6%

Revenue of fermented and downstream products increased substantially to
RMB3,062,833,000 (2020: RMB2,153,751,000).

Revenue of lysine increased from approximately RMB1,442,844,000 to
RMB2,224,230,000. The overall sales volume of lysine products increased by 16.2%
to about 320,638 tonnes (2020: 275,875 tonnes). As there was strong market
demand, the average selling price recorded a substantial increase by 32.6%. The
average selling price of lysine products was about RMB6,937 (2020: RMB5,230) per
tonne.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Revenue of starch-based sweetener was approximately RMB519,544,000 (2020:
RMB357,781,000). The average selling price and sales volume of starch-based
sweetener was about RMB2,650 (2020: RMB2,201) per tonne and 196,049 tonnes
(2020: 162,586 tonnes) respectively.

Revenue of modified starch decreased from RMB312,025,000 to RMB267,463,000.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction of production resulting from
the city’s sewage disposal control in the second half of the year.

Revenue of other fermented products increased by 25.5% to approximately
RMB51,596,000 (2020: RMB41,101,000).

Cost of sales and gross profit

The major cost components for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly consisted
of corn kernel cost and utilities expenses. Our electricity and steam unit prices
were adjusted in the fourth quarter of 2021 by the electricity companies because
the coal price increased significantly. The corn kernel market price also increased
significantly by 25.1% to RMB2,542 (2020: RMB2,032) per tonne, net of value added
tax. As there was a strong market demand for all range of products, we can shift
our cost burden to our customer in most of the time. The gross profit increased to
approximately RMB952,211,000 (2020: RMB559,775,000).

The Group did not enter into any forward/futures contract to hedge the price
fluctuation of corn kernel during the year review. The Group makes purchases from
the spot market in accordance with its production schedule.

Review of Other Operations
Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 decreased substantially
to RMB164,934,000 (2020: RMB184,229,000) because the Group used more bulk
cargo delivery which the cost was lower than other means of distributions, such as by
train. In addition, the Group also promoted customers to pick up their goods from our
warehouse directly.
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Distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 mainly #®EZZ-_—Fx_Z-ZTF+_/F=+—0HIt
comprised of the followings: FENDHERFTEAETIEE!

2021 2020

T —F —ERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBTT

Delivery and logistics AT R 138,173 160,786
Marketing expenses miIGHEERS 14,450 14,279
Staff costs BT RHA 7,173 6,384
Others Hih 5,138 2,780
164,934 184,229

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 increased ®HEZZ-_—F+A=+—HIEFENTHE
substantially to RMB192,013,000 (2020: RMB166,018,000). The significant increase ~ FIAIEIEINZE AR192,013,000c (ZE T4 ©
was mainly attributable to the increase in the staff costs and depreciation and  AR#166,018,0007T) ° Z ARG ML EEZHR
amortisation expenses. Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December EBIMARNELRBHEREM HE_T - —
2021 and 2020 mainly comprised of the followings: FRIZEIEF+ A=+ —HIFENTHE

BFEgETIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEIEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR®BF T
Staff costs BT A& 101,312 93,835
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ITEE R i EE & A 37,371 24,098
Government levies B E 22,657 21,145
Others Hih 30,673 26,940
192,013 166,018

Research expenses HEEH

Research expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 increased substantially #E_Z-_—F+_B=+—HIEFENHEE
to RMB199,648,000 (2020: RMB28,899,000), which were mainly attributable to B AIRIEMNE AR199,648,0007T (ZEZFF
the increase in research expenses on the innovation of production technology and AR #28,899,0007T) * Itb73 F EZHN £ ERTA!
obtaining new knowledge for corn-derivative products. The research projects also MR EIREKRTEERM AN ARTERIG M-
included feasible studies on new methods of production, improving production  ZRIEE N BIEFHEELEE 5 AR B AT M
efficiency, and reducing energy consumption. 7 IR B L EN @ OBV BE B FE ©
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Other net income

The other net income increased to RMB114,923,000 (2020: RMB80,871,000). The
major items of other net income are set out below:

HtF YA

HMF WAL INZE AR 114,923,0007t (Z&2 =
T4 . AR1E80,871,0007T) o EMF M AN T E
EHEHNWT :

2021 2020
T —F TZTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEF T
Amortisation of government grants BT BN Ry 8Y 62,925 58,821
Government grants (one-off) B RN (—3 %) 36,496 1,543
Gain on sales of scrap materials THEER 2 W= 17,317 11,521
Electricity and related service B RAERERE 610 4,348
Gain on futures contracts HE&aNE 333 2,524
Accounts payable written back e EIINEN - 3,996
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HE B KRB EHHN
W#, (B518) 1,075 (1,231)
Written off of property, plant and equipment W2 B (3,091) -
Net foreign exchange loss PE & R5 185 48 (1,958) (4,036)
Others Hth 1,216 3,385
114,923 80,871
HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES ANE R R FHMEER

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had about 2,326 full time staff (2020: 2,316)
in the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of
the Group were approximately RMB229,470,000 (2020: RMB190,457,000). The
Group considers the experience, responsibility, and performance of the Directors
and employees of the Group in order to determine their respective remuneration
packages.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
in order to enable the Group to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group as well as to attract, recruit and retain
senior management, key employees and human resources that are valuable or
potentially valuable to the Group.

In addition, a remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2021, no share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and investment on
uncommitted funds. The primary purpose of our financial management and treasury
policy is to ensure possessing of sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitment on one hand and to obtain better return on the other hand. Any
unused fund is not only placed on short-term/fixed deposits with authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong and/or the PRC, but also short-term capital-and-reward
guaranteed financial instruments.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Directors do not consider the exposure to foreign exchange risk being significant
to the Group’s operation as the Group operated mainly in the PRC and most of the
Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities were denominated in Renminbi. Foreign
currencies were however received from export sales. Such proceeds were subject
to foreign exchange risk before converting into Renminbi. The foreign currencies
received from export sales were converted into Renminbi upon receipt from overseas
customers. The Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring the exchange
rates closely instead of entering into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the year ended 31
December are set out below:

MBEEREBHR

FERHTEEEARNESTRRETHREE
BRRARB BRAMBEEREBRRNEER
BNRERFARHRSRAIPABRITEERN
HKE > WIS EERNDR - ERHRBANE
SHREERNE B HRENDE SR EE
KR ERERSN e BIERERRAREK
mAERT R

4 BE L B

ENFAEETSETELEES MAEHKE
DR EERBEDUARBHE RESAR
AN EE BT AR BRI B o 28T > LI 8H
BRI EERINE - BRMEMERZIRD
N 8 A 78 78 52 51 B Rl g o H 0 8% 5 W B9 Sh I
DRSNS P UE R R AR o REH M &
DT SNER AL B N EEINERRR > T2
BRTY)BEEXEERER -

RBEE MHERRERRE

FERBE+ A=+ —HLEFENRARMBER
WIER&HIINT ¢

Units 2021 2020
B —E—F ZEIEF
Debtors turnover FE W BR R i days X 14 25
Creditors turnover T ER RN B days X 7 7
Inventories turnover FEEE days X 24 30
Current ratio TRENEEE times & 25 1.9
Quick ratio HENLEX times & 1.8 1.2
Gearing ratio (note 1) BAREEEE (MFsE1) % 2.4 2.8
Total shareholder return (note 2) MRS EREIRE (ME2) % 41.7 13.3
Notes: B 5
1) Gearing ratio is calculated as the borrowings to total assets. 1) TEIRLEE I ER G UBEESE
@) Total shareholder return combines share price appreciation and dividends paid to show  (2) MRROIREDEREABLENRE U

the total return to shareholders.

The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group is
sufficient for its present requirements. As at 31 December 2021, most of borrowings
of the Group are short-term borrowings. The aggregated bank borrowings and
other borrowings of approximately RMB103,000,000 were denominated in Renminbi
and were carried interest at fixed rates. The loan from a controlling shareholder of
RMB8,176,000 was denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and was carried interest at
a floating rate. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mostly denominated
in Renminbi. The decrease in borrowings was mainly attributable to the improved
profitability during the year under review.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, bills payables were secured by bank acceptance bills of
RMB8,428,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any leasehold
land and building to secure banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB132,569,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board intends to create long term value for the shareholders of the Company
through maintaining a balance between dividend distribution, adequate cash flow and
reserve to meet its working capital requirement and capturing growth opportunities.
The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends after taking into account
the current financial performance, the future financial requirements and any other
factors that may deem relevant to the Company. The Board may decide the frequency
of dividend payment and further declare or recommend any special distributions.
Dividends may be declared or paid by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including the laws of Cayman Islands and the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association. The Board will review this
dividend policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividend will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Environmental and Sustainability Report
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Basis of preparation

The preparation of this report was conducted mainly with reference to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. We aimed to provide a balanced and comprehensive review on mainly the
environment and social performance of different areas in our Group with our major
stakeholders in this report. We used priority issue analysis to identify and focus the
primary needs and issues faced by our stakeholder groups.

This report covered the overall environmental and social performance of all major
subsidiaries of the Group which are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements during the year ended 31 December 2021 which engage in the
manufacturing and sales activities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Disclaimer statement

The performance data set out in this report are not independently audited or verified.
The management endeavours to present a complete and meaningful information to
the user of such data, however, we cannot assure the accuracy or completeness
of data in which we collected. The accuracy of the data we produced in this report
may be affected by, inter alia, unit conversion factors, material/quality tolerance, and
difference in material used and method of production. Therefore, we accept no liability
for the accuracy of the information if users of such data suffer any losses or damage.

Board statement

We recognise our corporate social responsibility to society. Consequently, the
Board oversees ESG-related issues as well as the oversall environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) management approach.

The Board believes that the Group’s sustainability is highly dependent on the
relationship with its stakeholders. Besides creating value to shareholders of the
Company, we also create value to our stakeholders beyond monetary terms. We
are committed to incorporating ESG mindset into business operations by balancing
financial performance with how we do business, how we treat our people, how we
live the values in our business relationships and how we care for the environment
which we rely on.
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What we believe

Cornstarch is one of the most versatile and easily workable resources which also
has a wide range of application in various industries. From the perspective of corn
supply, the promotion of using cornstarch would support the development of local
and village economy by wise-using the agricultural lands. From the perspective of
demand of corn kernel, cornstarch is one of the most commonly used components
of tens of thousands of manufactured products nowadays. Its existence can be found
in different formats, such as clothing we wear, the food and beverage served in the
restaurant, and as far as oil exploration. Thus, we maintain a positive view on our
business in the long run.

With our strong platform, we are positioned to capture the benefits of an increasing
market share and are well prepared for further sustainable growth. Even though
we are facing the current tough and uncertain global and domestic environment,
our objective remains unchanged, which is to be in a leading position in the corn-
refinery industry in the PRC. To achieve this goal, the Directors and the Board’s
executive management teams are engaged in expanding our Group in various
aspects, including our production capacity of cornstarch and lysine products, our
product pipeline, our marketing force and our market coverage. The Company is also
committed to enhancing our research and development capability.
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Reporting principles
We applied the following principles in the preparation of this report:
Materiality

We identify and assess ESG issues by considering key factors that affect the
operations and continuity of our business from the perspectives of our stakeholders.
We have six major stakeholder groups which are set out in the section headed “Our
Methodology to this Report” below in this report.

Quantitative

Where applicable, we provided information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for
the reporting of emissions/energy consumption disclosed in the respective sections in
this report.

Consistency

We applied consistent methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG
data over time.

Our Methodology to this Report

The management team is delegated by the Board to identify, evaluate, prioritise,
manage and mitigate material ESG-related issues that might adversely affect our
business. The Board will discuss and review the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities,
performance, progress, goals and targets regularly with the assistance of the
management team, with reference to the applicable environmental-related targets set
by the local governments and compare our outcomes with these targets.

We conducted a stakeholder review every year to ensure that we can address
material issues related to the Group.

We have seven major stakeholder groups which can participate in or affect our
decision-making process and influence our business outcomes.
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Talents

We recognise that the health and safety of our people come first as
they are key to our long-term success. This is core to us and to every
aspect of our business. We believe the achievement of positive workplace
relations is mutually beneficial to the Group and our employees as
workplace efficiency is achieved when labour relationships allow for a
culture of continuous improvement and acceptance of change. Thus, we
encourage communication at all levels. Apart from regular meetings with the
representative of the Group’s labour union, we also obtain opinions from
and provide feedbacks within our workgroups in order to ensure continual
improvement for the work environment and other staff related matters. To
understand, manage and, where possible, minimise occupational injuries
or illnesses in our business is equally important. We have appropriate
controls in place and provide our people with appropriate training to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to employees’
health and safety. On-the-job trainings related to individual development are
also provided to our people to enhance skills and capabilities for discharging
duties at work. The purpose of this arrangement lets our staff get familiar with
all accidental situations and minimise the risk of accidents.

Our training and drills are mandatory and their results will become a part
of the staff appraisal record. Major training topics and activities are shown
below:

- Fire prevention and fire drill

- Hazardous chemical leaking drill

- Safety laws and regulations

- Occupational disease prevention training

- Body check provided for selected staff with high occupational disease
risk

- Liquid flammable chemical rescue exercise

- Electrician, welder and boiler worker safety training

- Lightning protection check

- Update and change of hazard identification and warning cards

- Safety requirement for using hoisting belts
- Prevention of dust explosion
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During the year, the Group arranged a special seminar for selected staff for
the topic related to the Production Safety Law, which was newly enacted in
the PRC. There were approximately 120 staff attended this seminar.

At the same time, we strive to cultivate sustainable employment practices
and labour standards by strictly complying with the PRC Labour Law,
the PRC Labour Contract Law and other applicable PRC employment
regulations throughout our production processes, and by promoting fair
and equal treatment in all areas of human resources, including recruitment
and promotion, compensation and dismissal, working hours, diversity, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
We usually recruit staff in colleges to ensure the candidates have sufficient
working capability. In addition, we also check candidates’ identification
document to avoid hiring child labour. It is our policy to avoid child and forced
labour in any of our operations. We believe that the Group can uphold human
rights, prevention of child labour and forced labour by strictly complying with
the above laws and regulations and internal policy.

In adherence with high standards of business ethics and anti-bribery policies,
all employees (including Directors) are required to abide by our ethics policy.
Our employees are prohibited from conducting themselves in any way which
involves any illegal behaviours by taking advantage or abusing their positions,
including but not limited to bribery, fraud, extortion, money laundering
and illegally obtaining or accepting benefits from others. In addition, a
whistleblowing policy has been implemented to provide a secured reporting
channel for employees and stakeholders including, among others, customers
and suppliers to report any suspected misconduct or malpractice involving
the Group.

Our Directors are reminded to avoid making decisions and abstain from
voting if they are aware of potential conflict of interests in any meetings.
Our staff handbook also included anti-corruption clauses to enhance staff's
awareness of handling conflict of interest situations. We set the tone at the
top and implement these rules at all levels in the Group. Our in-house training
is mandatory and applicable to all staff without distinction by gender.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group regarding, among others, safe working environment,
occupational hazards, employment and labour practices, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, preventing child and forced labour and anti-
corruption and no legal proceedings or cases regarding corrupt practices had
been instituted by or brought against the Group and/or its employees.
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The following table summarised the employment information of the major
PRC subsidiaries of the Group for the past three consecutive years.
2021
—EZ—F
Number of employees EBEAZ 2,323
By gender BRI D58
All grades Fr B 4R 51
- Male —B% 1,932
- Female -t 391
Supervisory level FER
- Male — B 43
— Female -4 1
Managerial level KIBAR
- Male —B% 5
— Female -t 1
By age group BERABR D
— Under 30 —305 AT 787
-30to 50 — 305k &2505% 1,465
- Above 50 —50m A E 71
By employment type B EEER DB
- Permanen —&H 2,281
— Temporary —EREF 42
Staff turnover ratio BT kxR
All grades P 4R Al
- Male —B% 6.7%
- Female -4 0.7%
By age group B ERAER D
— Under 30 —30 U T 4.6%
—-30to 50 —305% &2505% 2.6%
- Above 50 —508 A & 0.2%
Number of Fatalities® FETERE -
Rate of Fatality® TET FE R -
Lost time injury (“LTI”) BRIKITE
(MBL TR 6
Rate of LTI° BRIFRFT e 1.26%
Training hours® (per month) EIINEe (BA)
— General —— 11.4
— Middle-level — R 16.6
— Senior —&k 21.4
a Staff turnover represents the employees (permanent and temporary) leaving
the Group voluntarily.
b Fatality is the death of an employee as a result of an occupational injury
incident in the course of employment.
[¢] The rates are the number of incidents within a financial year relative to the total

number of hours worked in the same financial year. The rates are normalised

to 1,000,000 worked hours.

d LTl is an occupational injury sustained by an employee for which the employee

misses one or more scheduled workdays after the day of injury.

e The average number of training hours per employee is calculated as the total
internal training hours to different employee categories.

TERBRAERTZREMBERARDBE
—EEEFENREBER-

2020 2019
BT —E—hEF
2,313 2,300
1,925 1,884
388 416
43 47

1 1

5 5

1 1

592 600
1,646 1,615
75 85
2,294 2,273
19 27
5.2% 6.4%
0.7% 0.8%
3.0% 4.4%
2.6% 2.5%
0.3% 0.3%
1 1
0.18% 0.26%
2 1
0.37% 0.26%
14.8 11.9
19.8 18.3
33.5 29.6

BIRAXSEEEMAATEENE
8 (REIREERS) -
ETEH A —LEENRZERABEA
THEEHFET.
ERLEXANYBEEREREE
BERE-—VBREERNTREHZ
EX - BRLEEUEEEIRAIR
EL2Ho
BRIKIBGAEERIBGMAER
BEBRBE-RIULTAET(
HB9IER
BRESNTHEIREEZRE
BT EMRBI A BB AR Bt 5 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —Z——&&8 23



Environmental and Sustainability Report
IRIE A EE RS

24

Suppliers

We have developed trust with our suppliers. We, as a leading cornstarch
manufacturer, play an important role in the procurement of corn kernel in
Shouguang and Linging districts, which are located in Shandong province.
Our suppliers mainly consist of farmers, cooperatives, agents and traders
in the PRC. We provide our corn kernel offer price to our suppliers by using
mobile technology. While our procurement is carried out on a 24/7 basis, we
propose corn kernel offer prices to our suppliers through mobile technology
to increase efficiency. We believe that our suppliers will deliver the best corn
kernel to us at their first priority because our offer prices are transparent and
we show commitment to purchase at our initial offer prices.

Our second largest material supplier group is the suppliers of chemical
materials and consumables. Most of them are also located in the PRC.
In order to have a fair, transparent and competitive environment, it is our
policy to publish our tender invitation on the company’s website. Offer
price given by tenderers is not the only crucial factor considered by us.
Historical compliance records, such as labour practices, business ethics and
environmental protection policies, will also be considered during the selection
process. We have a similar procedure for the selection of construction and
equipment contractors.

The Group also have a quality assurance policy on our suppliers. We conduct
supplier audits and on-site inspections to (i) ensure that the materials used
by our suppliers complied with the contract specifications and (i) review any
potential risk or issue on environment and labour practice. If the performance
of work is carried in our site, the contractor is also required to follow our
factory safety regulations.

It is our target to maintain an open and a fair business environment to our
partners. We are committed to maintaining highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability. We not only have a whistle-blowing policy which
allows the report of any misconduct, but also have anti-bribery provision in
our procurement agreements stating the consequence of the breach of the
Group’s anti-corruption policy. During the year, the Group did not receive
reports in respect of staff or supplier corruption.
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Customers

Product safety is a great issue as we produce base raw materials for our
customers. Our products can be reproduced for animal feeds or other
products for human intake. The maintenance of high product quality is the
only key to customers’ loyalty. Our quality assurance programme ensures
that our product standards can be identified precisely in accordance with the
Chinese national standards issued by The Standardization Administration of
the PRC. In addition, we also work closely with our customers to develop our
order book and provide the required products at the right time.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group regarding, health and safety, marketing and labelling.

During the year under review, the Group did not receive any substantiated
and material complaints that the Group had to recall and treat the whole
batch of product as scrap material for safety and health reasons.

Governments

One of our major stakeholders is government authorities. The Group shows
its commitment to improve production efficiency by using modernised
production facilities and deploying resources in the development of
production knowhow. The payback of these investments would not be within
a short time. To ensure that the development direction is on the right way with
long-term government support, we maintain good working relationship with
the municipal governments. In addition, we have worked closely with local
governments, other government bureaus, such as Environmental Protection
Bureau and Tax Bureau. For example, the Group cooperated with the new
sewage disposal target set by the local government during the second half
year of 2021 and reduced our modified starch production volume. We expect
that our continuous commitments and support to the government authorities
would assist them in better understanding and responding to our industry
needs.

Business Strategic Partners

It is the Group’s vision to become a leading market player in the corn-
refinery industry in the PRC. Our business strategies are formulated under
this basis. Now, we are gradually moving toward cornstarch-derivative
markets representing high value-added products and higher barrier of entry.
We welcome cooperation with other leading market players and develop
businesses with them.

To ensure long-term success, we carry out market assessment analysis on
potential products cautiously. It is important to select a suitable business
partner who should have high reputation in the industry and proven
successful business record.
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Shareholders

One of the major stakeholders of the Company is our shareholders. We share
our business objective with and create value to our shareholders. Our long-
term corporate strategy is to maximise total shareholder return. The Board
undertakes the management responsibility on behalf of our shareholders.
During our decision-making process, we strive to strike a balance among
various factors, including without limitation maintaining a healthy balance
sheet, choosing sustainable development projects, and determining the
optimal financial requirements of the Group.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’ communications, with
the objective of ensuring the availability of balanced and understandable
information and each of the shareholders are treated equally. We encourage
shareholders and potential investors read the Company’s corporate
communication policy, which is available at the Company’s website.

Environment

Environmental Policies

The Group understands that our business has an impact on the environment
and we recognise the importance of sound environmental management
practices and sustainable business operations. We are committed to meeting
all environmental standards and policies as set by the PRC government.

Throughout the year under review, there were no material incidence of non-
compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations nor were
there climate-related issues that have a significant impact on the Group. Our
environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between cost of production on
one hand, and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and sewage disposal on
the other hand. Our business is both energy and water intensive, the Group
has its own facilities to reduce GHG emissions and treat sewage before
disposal to city sewage network. A perpetual monitoring system on sewage
disposal is reported to local environmental protection bureau and open to
public inspection. In order to protect our environment and reduce the cost of
production, we use methane generated from sewage treatment to produce
steam for internal use.
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We currently do not set any target on the reduction of emission or non-
hazardous waste. It is because these factors are easily affected by the
product mix and the method of production. For example, the energy
consumption ratio for liquid sweetener and crystallised sweetener are
materially different. We perpetually adjust our production plan to satisfy our
customers’ order on one hand and maximise the efficiency of utilities and
other resources consumption ratio on the other hand, having regard to the
importance of sound environmental management practices and sustainable
business operations.

During the year under review, the Group did not produce any hazardous
waste in our production plants. In addition, most of our non-hazardous
wastes are collected and sold to third parties for other uses.

Use of Resources

Other than corn kernel, electricity and water are the other two major
elements during production. The electricity we used is mainly generated
from coal in Shandong province. Although the Group does not have any
option to choose the source for the production of energy, we spend much
effort to improve production efficiency and, in return, we can reduce the
GHG intensity indirectly. For example, the management team reviews the
energy consumption rate and sets a new target at the beginning of every
financial year. Water is a vital resource for our planet. It is used to grow crops,
feed animals and people, generate electricity and steam, and produce our
products. We extract underground water during the production and use our
own reclaimed water treatment facilities to minimise over-reliance of using
underground water and its impact to the environment. We are committed to
using water responsibly.

Packaging Materials

The packaging material usage would change in accordance to the customer’s
packaging requirements. We encourage our customers to use reusable
packaging material. During 2021, the packaging material used for finished
goods was about 7,888 tonnes. Among which, the newly purchased reusable
packaging material was about 672 tonnes for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: 580 tonnes).
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The following table summarised the environment-related information for all

major subsidiaries of the Group for the past three consecutive years.

Fresh water used (m?) FRAEK GLAK)

Fresh water consumption intensity BI7K;HfERE S #
index’

Electricity used (GWh) PRAE 7 (FEE)

Electricity consumption intensity & /77458 E {5 &
index'

Steam used (tonne) FrAAZ A (1)

Steam consumption intensity index' % ;5 4 #3815 8

Fuel used (itre) PRI EL (R F)

- Diesel —5&H
— Unleaded petrol R HIS0H

GHG emissions? (tonne of COze) B = REEHEME
(MEZE |16/
— Scope 1" —#EN1"
- Scope 2 —#[EF]2
— Total GHG emission —REREEAAHE

GHG emission intensity index* BE R RGAEIEE
Water discharged (m?) KEEE G5 K)
— Waste water to recycled water — —EE/KE{CAER B AKX
— Waste water to sewage ~BEZE 5K BRI EE K
network
Non-hazardous waste' produced  E£MIIEEREEY) (1)
(tonne)

2,037,133

134
735

95
2,424,367
86
407,155
84,577

1,312
1,262,320
1,263,632

90
4,032,190

2,732,015

66,590

Packaging material used™ (tonne) Pt FB E1EE ¥ m (148)

f

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fresh water, electricity and steam consumption intensity indices are calculated
as the intensity of fresh water, electricity and steam consumed per tonne of
physical product produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the
2016 base year (set to 100).

The methodology used for the determination of emissions for the financial
year 2016 is based on various documents, such as 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, and the 2015 Baseline Emission Factors
for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Department of Climate
Change and IPCC Fifth Assessment Report.

Scope 1 emissions represent the emissions from combustion of fuels at
stationary sources to generate electricity, steam, or heat which are owned or
controlled by the Group and transportation emissions from owned or operated
vehicles.

Scope 2 emissions are emissions from consumption of purchased electricity,
steam and heat.

Total GHG emissions are direct emissions, plus emissions from the net change
of purchasing and selling of electricity and steam.

GHG emission intensity index is calculated as the GHG emissions from
physical products produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the
base year (set to 100). The base year is 2016.

Non-hazardous wastes mainly represent sludge, saccharified residue,
inactivated bacteria residue and fertiliser.

The quantity includes reusable packaging material that has been used many
times.

RENBRMIERAIRAR

TERBEAEERMETEZMBERTNE
EEE=FMIREARRER

2020 2019
TECTE —E—NEF
2,095,597 1,194,022
156 106

741 467

104 78
2,592,062 1,754,470
97 78
402,926 351,173
84,700 90,584
1,300 1,171
1,237,561 812,283
1,238,861 813,454
100 78
3,123,921 2,401,416
2,829,307 2,348,681
70,717 40,778
7,893 7,074
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Other Environmental and Social Areas
Staff care

In 2021, most of our staff recreational activities returned to normal before the
outbreak of COVID-19. The Group organised various activities, such as cross-
country running, relay races, poker and chess competitions, tug-of-war competitions,
badminton competitions, table tennis competitions, Women’s Day Festival and other
activities. These activities could achieve good team spirit and enhance harmony in
the workplace. It is the Group’s policy to contribute to activities which can benefit the
community and create positive values to society through our business and operation.

There are small scale outbreaks of COVID-19 in different districts in China recently.
The management keeps reminding our staff to maintain their personal and family
hygiene. We have set up body temperature checkpoints at each entrance of our
premises and reduced the frequency of business travellings. We believe that these
measures would reduce the chance of infection and the risk of spreading COVID-19
to our community.

Intellectual property rights

We spend many resources on research and developments of new products or
innovation of new production methods. It is very difficult to quantify the result of our
study outcome in monetary terms. The use of this knowhow, however, can improve
our production efficiency and control our cost effectively. In order to protect our
research and development results, the Group will register the results with National
Intellectual Property Administration in the PRC.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

Our transactions are a business-to-business model. Therefore, consumer data
protection and privacy policies are not material to our operation.
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Our risk measurement philosophy

An effective risk review system could help an entity to minimise and manage
risks efficiently. Our risk management and internal control systems are not one-
off arrangements; instead they are integrated into our daily business operations
and decision-making process. The objective of upholding a high standard of risk
management and internal control is to guarantee the sustainability of the Group’s
development.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. These systems are monitored by the Board through the assistance
of the Audit Committee, Corporate Strategy and Development Department and
Internal Audit Department.

Identifying risks

The management uses risk scorecard to rank and compare each identified risk and its
related impact posing to the Group. Through this analysis process, all identified risks
are presented to the Board in an effective and comprehensible manner. The Board
reviews the risks and mitigation tools every year.

How we manage risk

Risk and control responsibility must be well-defined and delegated to each staff. Each
staff must understand their duty and recognise their responsibility. A well-defined
control prevention system is a key to success. Our risk prevention mechanism is as
follows:

BENAKRERES

BRNERERN AR ENERERAREERE
REMMEERR RBREERANBEZERFIL
F—RENZH B ZERRERMVBEEE
BEERARBEN—BH RS KERARE
BRNEEENENEREBLEMAIFEER

EFEeHTERERAREERNEEZERFAER
EET -ZFERAMAESFTIEELEZET hE
Fe BB AL ER 17 Bh T HETTER 52 o

B 53 L B
EEERARRN D FEFEEMANNSED

#ARB R EAEEBETHRMLR - EBRE
BENEE FREEHANEREUE MR Z 1

BRFRAEEE2R - EECSERIAR
REERBNT A
ERERNGE

HAIEFARAERRAEZETIEEISEES
T-#ETHATHRANS  IWRPAHET TE
BARE M BRI B R AR TD AL Th B R 52 o R FIB R B
FrEstmIm T

Risk ownership

B A I

Monitoring

-
BE

Compliance review

3()  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

The executive management team is assigned the responsibility for managing risks and monitoring the
implementation of risk mitigation policies. In addition, the team heads are required to pledge themselves to ensure
appropriate control procedures are in place within their respective teams to the Chief Executive Officer once a
year.

WTEEREFaEERRARI G ERMEFEBRAEEB R LN B NVEFEREFRITHRBEERERE
ZENEKEHTEaBNGEERR -

A monthly management report in respect to the operation, market and safety issues is circulated amongst the
management team. It allows the management to stay alert on potential risks in different seasons.
SANKE - THEAZ2EENEREREREERS  CEEEHTAZHNBTRBFRISTES

Internal Audit Department considers the review areas for the coming year and discusses its plan with the Audit
Committee. It also carries out ad-hoc tasks on specific areas which required by the Board or the management.
The internal audit report will be discussed with the respective department head and reviewed by the Board
respectively.

NEBEZBPIZRRENEEHE TEEZLZEGTmATE -ATREFENEEENERYFEETE
THREEZ NBERREHEZHMEENH ThEESHEM-
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Challenges

In 2021, there were two major concerns in China. First, it was the control and
identification of COVID-19 cases. The purpose was to help people to return to normal
life without compromising general public health. Second, it was the carbon footprint
neutralisation. This was to balance the economic development without making any
harmful decisions for our planet.

The management accepted these two concerns respectfully and worked closely with
our stakeholders. For example, we reduced the travelling frequency of our staff and
requested our staff to monitor their physical condition after journey. We invested in
high-efficiency equipment which could reduce the energy consumption effectively.

Principle risks analysis

Principle risk and uncertainty identification are part of our risk management system.
During the year under review, the Board held one meeting to discuss the risks and
mitigation tools. The following analysis shows the major risks and uncertainties that
are considered material and may adversely affect the business and financial position
of the Group.

kB

B ohEERMBEAFERE -HARY
COVID-19R AN EFI REE  BNERERTZER
BRBENERT  HMAMEREREE - ERZ
BB BFRRD BNE IR BB R R AR CRE R
BRI BR 2 VR T o
EEBRARZMEEHA T RFDEBRTEIEH
> BB THERIER > W ERE TEHIT
BEAEH BN - MBIZREN B B BERE
=R

FERES

R E=ENC S E R S E S E A mfi% i
WHEAP—E D HREBRFE EFFRT-—RNT=H
BEIELVE I ﬁ%lﬁo%?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
REARIIERNAEBNEZRMBRREET
AEENTERBRKATEERSR-

The challenge of oversupply and weak demand for cornstarch and its
related products accelerates over the year.

R RIS RE .

HPINEFKBRPREBENER  ERBHREEMERHBIRRKET |
SRIE SRV PREN RS F P9 E o

. MmEHEERNE
BERERBMTEERTHHNER

Major risks Mitigation plans

FERMR SFEREMmE

Lack of growth dynamic in the PRC o Maintain a strong balance sheet
o Maintain sufficient banking facilities

Our businesses are dependent on the prosperity of the Chinese market. | e Strengthen the credit control of customers
L]

Develop our business in a cornstarch-derivative product market

. HRRENEEAER
R EHMMIRTRE

= s B
SHmIT

Failure to operate our plants as scheduled o
Group
Production schedule may be affected by working safety review and |e
environmental review.

We have no compromise on staff safety. Failure to follow safety laws, | e
regulations and standards may result in workplace accidents involving injury
or fatality. During the year under review, we spend much effort to ensure
that safety controls are in place. o

In order to fulfil a regional gas pollutant or sewage discharge benchmark | e
set by the local government, factories in the region may be required to limit | e
their production output temporarily. The frequency of such requirements
may increase in the future.

BAMNIREAMAAEE
FEMBERINTFZ2EERIRFETENTE-
BMEEIRE2EHELETES - MAREETLZEEH RO KIRE 7]
FEEERTIFMABELERIN ERGET NEBEEE HMBHBRERES
Eife2iRE-

A7 RE EMBUTGIENME T R SRS SR RS R ZMEN T
PR EJAE & R E R E B [RGB o REZ BRI RBAE R KRB BEFHE N -

Safety Supervision Department to oversee all safety issues of the

Corporate Strategy and Development Department to monitor control
procedures in place regularly

. Perform various safety exercises and safety drills regularly

Maintain high level of gas emission/sewage discharge standard
during our production

EBERAEETAEREFE
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Major risks

TERE

Mitigation plans

EF 4R E It A

Failure to minimise adverse impacts from national-wide disruptive
forces such as disease and natural disaster

External events (such as swine flu, flooding, crop failure) would have a
significant impact on our business. This could happen at any time without
warning.

BERERRAAKELZAZARIUERARZNFFEERERE

SNEBEE M (MNFE MR HAK S BIFVIRE) RERMINEFZEREATE-
ZBERILEERTAE BRI AJAERE-

Sourcing from national food reserve or other regions
Maintain adequate insurance to protect our assets
Review and update our mitigation plan regularly

Set up emergency mitigation action group if necessary

REEZHE RS E Mt E RE
SR MM RBUURERMINE E
TEHRtE 5 R AT AT 4R LB 5t B
WERRIEZETERARTE/NE

Extra cost to neutralise greenhouse gas (“GHG”) footprint

A carbon neutrality roadmap was announced by the PRC government in
September 2021. The commitment to this target was distributed widely
from government to private sectors. This trend would inevitably increase
operating costs and affect capital investment.

hHBEERE (TRERE) BHAEI R A
PEBFR -2 —FABAMKRPNRGE BRZERNEIBREZ

DIREBR K ALE BRI - ZEEAE R B RHIEMEERA N R BEELR
Zo

Engage external GHG professional parties (eg. local universities) to
assist the Group to evaluate any new investment projects
Investment in the use of power-saving equipment

Participate in the government/industry workgroup of setting GHG
standards

ZEIRERBFEME WEMASR) UBBHAEBRTHER
MIREER

REGAMERE

SHERIRAERBRENBN,ERITFNE

Failure to maintain our product quality
Our product may not achieve our customer’s required level of quality or

national standard. Poor quality or sub-standard products could have a
negative impact on our brand image and reputation.

BEMBRMANEREE

BMNERREEIERERNEERKTHERRE - BRELSIFEH
NEREHRMNGETSMBEELEETE-

Undertake strict quality control and product testing

Carry out periodic product recall drills to improve the handling
process of product recalls shall they arise, hence minimising the
potential negative impact of any sub-standard product on the Group

ETRENEERERS
EHETERGRIRS  UBEHREERB QR EERE  Em
REATERERHAEENETEERERERE

Failure to maintain production software security

The increase in using automated production methods can reduce
headcount effectively. However, it increases the exposure to software
malfunction risk. The operation may be interrupted by a cyber-attack or
false human input.

BEMBEERGZR

BINEAEBEEENFETARNL B THE AT > HIBIN T MR
e Y L i o 4 P AE o (R 52 B AR AR TAC BB B A T 9 A B8 R 7 R B

Real-time power supply monitoring system

Implement strict physical security control in restricted areas, e.g.
control room

Use of firewall and antivirus software

BERHEBHERGR
REREEE (FIIEHE) BifEENYER2ES
R NE R R F ]
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Major risks

TERE

Mitigation plans

EFAEE IR A

Failure to manage price fluctuation in cornstarch, corn kernel and
energy costs

Cornstarch and corn kernel prices are more volatile in recent years. We may
not pass the increased cost to customers immediately and may result in a
significant loss.
EEEEERBRM RN KRB Z EEKE

TSR E KB B B KRR AR R ENEK « P9 0J S5 8 A BN 9 18 A0 89 Al
rEEZR WMEREKRBL-

Monitor the commodity price movement closely
Use derivatives
Set energy consumption reduction target

BYERER mERED
ERTEER
HIEEIAEFFERR

Breach of legal and regulatory requirements

It is a trend that environmental protection-related rules and regulations will
be more stringent year by year. A government’s policy may change without
prior signals. Evolving standards, rules and regulations could result in
increased costs, regulatory actions, or in extreme cases, litigation or plant
closure.

BREBREEER
SRIRBREAFAORR ARG —FLE—F B WEMRBE - BUFEER

FITE 2 EATIBIIER T o - 1B H  RB KR 8 D RE B E A
A EATBREETE EERER N B S SRR AN TR

Regular monitoring and review of changes in laws and regulations
Act as a representative of industry group and participate in the
government policy/regulation-making stage

TEHIEE R g s A B R R B S B

BETEAMRNRR EBUNBEROMGIEREN A

Failure to promote new products

The Group may not execute a new product project as planned.

mARENER

FEBROERABEITHERRE -

Market research and feasibility study on potential new product

VEEMERETHISREERIITHME

Failure to meet expansion target

Business combination, acquisition or formation of joint venture may not
achieve the expected outcome as planned.

mEREHREBR

EHaf BN S ERER A BEISTRARR

Due diligence work on a potential acquisition target
Engage legal advisors to advise on investment or cooperation
proposal

HETRBERETERNEE
ZEFZERMRENGFRZERREHUER

The Board considered the internal control system is effective and adequate for the
year ended 31 December 2021. No significant areas of concern that might affect the

Group were identified.

It should be acknowledged that our risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company understands
maintaining high corporate governance standard is crucial to success in the future.
The Board and its dedicated executive management teams always demonstrate its
commitment in upholding sound internal control standard, accountability and integrity
to the shareholders and stakeholders of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year under review and
has applied the principles as laid down with the aim of achieving a high level of
governance, except that Mr. Tian Qixiang (the chairman of the Board) did not attend
the 2021 annual general meeting (the “2021 AGM”) because of his other business
engagement.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Dealing Code
applies to all Directors and to all employees who are informed that they are subject to
its provisions. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and that all the
Directors confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in the Dealing
Code throughout the year under review.

The Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
for its leadership and control and is collectively responsible for promoting the
Company’ long-term success and businesses by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board is currently composed of four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. All members of the Board are subject to
the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties in upholding their accountability
to the Shareholders and in making decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, being the governing body of the Company, had led the management in
performing the following duties during the year under review:

° Formulating long-term and short-term strategic and business plans

o Approving the Group’s annual forecasts

o Evaluating the business performance of the Group

° Ensuring the integrity of financial information

° Evaluating the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems

° Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s corporate governance policies and
practices and ensuring their implementation in accordance with the CG Code

o Ensuring the Group’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
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To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain functions
to various Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each of these Board committees
operates under their respective written terms of reference on terms no less exacting
than the code provisions. Suggestions and conclusions of the Board committees will
be reported to the Board in its subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational responsibilities to the
executive management team under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chief Executive Officer, working with the executive management team, is responsible
for the operations and business development of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position of the
Chairman, primarily responsible for the strategic positioning. Mr. Gao Shijun serves
as the Chief Executive Officer, primarily responsible for the operations and business
development of the Group.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular, between Mr. Tian
Qixiang (Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer). The biographies of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles”.

Company Secretary

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, the company secretary of the Company, is a full-time employee
of the Group. He also serves as the secretary of each of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and other board committees as
organised by the Board from time to time. Mr. Leung is responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance
matters, for example, to ensure Board procedures and applicable laws and
regulations are followed.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountant. Mr. Leung is also a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung took no less than 15 hours professional
training to update his skills and knowledge.
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2021 Board and Committee Meeting Attendance and Training
Record

During the year under review, the Board held four regular meetings and one additional
meeting. The regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance by Directors. Other additional Board meetings are convened as
and when required.

Our Directors recognised the importance of participating in continuous professional
development (the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill, which can
help them keep abreast of current trends and issues facing the Group and ensure
better fulfiiment of their duties as directors of the Company.

The attendance record of the Directors at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and the 2021 AGM, together with the type of training received by each of
the Directors during the year under review are as follows:

T EEEUUS
B9 th g e 2 3288

REEEEE

REBEFE EFERTHERERNTER —RE
HEZ - BEFERF - FHUERESTTEEN
X BUREEFNHERRERS NMER
B2 NEAMEMBIEEET RS-

(MFEEEER) &
> HeJ < ER 8
CMERRES

EFEHESURBEXER
EREMAHMARENES
B A8 55 K A 5 B PR E PR B B RE
FHETERERABESHNEE

%%V@Eﬁi NEFEER EFTEZEEY
ERCEC—FREBFRAGHFELE URE
%?Fﬂixﬂ’\]iﬁéﬂliﬁﬁuw'l: :

Board Meetings Board Committee Meetings
EES -6 EZ9Z8983
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Type of
Regular Others Committee Committee Committee 2021 AGM  CPD received
IR FEENGE
- Hitr ENZES HHESE REZEE RREFAE FEEEEN
Executive Directors: HiTES.
Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) HEREE (FR) 4/4 17 N/A RER 1 1 X AB
M. Gao Shiun (Chef Exective Officer] BHERLE (THEL) 44 1 NATEE  NATEE  NATER v AB
M. Liu Xianggang ARBEE 4/4 1N NA R Ef NAFER NAFER / AB
M Yu Yingouan FESEE 44 11 NATEE  NATEE  NATER v AB
Independent non-executive Directors: B EHTES:
Professor Hua Qiang TERsR 4/4 11 33 1/1 11 / AB
M. Sun Mingdao BEEEE 44 1 33 1 1 v AB
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken KREELL 44 il 3/3 11 11 / AB
A Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/forums/workshops/conferences relating to A HFE BB B o BRI E A R
directors’ duties or other relevant topics g /Mg BLEmsg wiE S TS
&Y%
B Reading materials, such as newspapers, journals, business updates and regulatory B BERAER CEEANESTHBEERNMS
updates relating to business, economy or directors’ duties B MmEBAH R EBEARENSESE
BillE
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Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Currently,
the Board considered that it is difficult for the Company to set a specific number/
ratio for female and male board members because the industry practitioners in this
base material manufacturing sector are mostly dominated by males. This is a gender
gap problem commonly existing in the manufacturing industry. Notwithstanding the
above, the Board will make every endeavour to achieve board diversity by forming
the Board with different genders. In designing the Board’s composition, board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural, race, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and independence under the Group’s Board Diversity Policy as published
on the Company’s website. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Director’s Appointments, Re-election and Removal

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change that may affect his independence and must provide
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
using and applying consistently suitable accounting policies and making reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board meetings.
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are responsible for
explaining the latest business development and financial projections to the Directors.
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During the year, the fee payable to the external auditor of the Group, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, and its affiliated firms comprise service charges for the following:

FR BANESEEIBRZEMEXTHN (& &
SHTEBAAERARDKERBARNERGEL
TRBER:

2021 2020

T —F TECEE

HK$000 HK$000

THET FHET

Audit service EIZARTS 960 910

Review of interim results ERPRAER 300 290

Tax representative service MBRRRTE - 32
Risk Management and Internal Control B EE KR AEREIE

Each company and industry is associated with specific inevitable risks. We cannot
avoid them, but we adopt the best and responsible approach to manage and
overcome them. Our risk management and internal control systems have been in
place for many years, which provide the assurance of operation efficiency, work
safety and safeguarding of assets. The Company does not set up a designated
committee for reviewing risk management and internal control systems. However, the
Board undertakes the responsibility for monitoring the business risks and formulating
plans and risk management policies to mitigate potential risks and uncertainties
that materially affect the business of the Group. The Board is also responsible for
evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The management team is delegated by the Board to identify, manage and mitigate
material risks that might adversely affect our business. Once the management team
considers any newly-identified risk to be material, it will report such risk to the Board
for assessment and consideration of implementing a corresponding mitigation plan
where appropriate. However, it is possible that certain risks remain undetected or
unidentified and risks currently identified as immaterial may eventually turn out to
be material to our Group. In view of the inevitable nature of certain risks associated
with our business and industry, our risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate unavoidable risks of failure to achieve
the Group’s business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The following diagram shows the risk management hierarchy of the Group, which
provides information on our processes used to identify, evaluate and manage  K#AFHEREEEXRARIRENER

significant risks:

The Board

Exg

Monitoring business risks

BRREER

Formulating plans and risk management policies
2 5T 8 ke AL B IR

Evaluating effectiveness of risk controls and mitigation tools
ST L B R Rl R B 4 T ARV

Oversee and ensure the conduct of reviews on the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems at least
annually
EREEREFEVHAEENRREERNEEERRET
—REH

Audit committee
BEREZEE

Reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems at least annually
BFEEVOHAEENRBEERAPEZERRET —RER
Ensure the Group’s management has performed its duty

in implementing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems
BRAEEEERBTHATAERERBREERANBEIZRR
MBS

Considering major findings on risk management and internal
control matters

ZRERAREERABEIESHNEARIR

Operational departments

EES

F3

Identifying different risks and uncertainties in each operating
cycle

H A B EEEBRR BN RRRFBBEER

Reporting identified risks and significant adverse business
factors

BRECHEARKRERTHEBRAR

Implementing risk controls and mitigation policies determined

by the Board
HITHEFIETNREBRES REFEBR

The Board
EEg

A

Audit Committee

B%EEY

A

n?::;:tel:)nr::t Internal audit
37|
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Operational departments

The function of operational management includes, inter alia, the identification of
potential risks and the implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, including risk controls and mitigation policies, as determined by the
Board in the course of daily operations.

The Group has built in the risk management culture from top to bottom. At
departmental level, the Group has prescribed, for each operational department, our
risk management principles, control procedures and code of conducts in order to
promote stronger understanding of stewardship responsibilities, delegation of duties,
and accountability for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
At staff level, the Group has laid down the business ethics policy, whistleblowing
policy and inside information escalation policy to ensure that sufficient controls are in
place to guide our employees’ behaviours through, and ensure timely and decisive
responses to, potential and emerging crises. To enforce our people’s individual risk
management capabilities and minimise any gap between the Board’s risk vision and
management’s actions, risk-related objectives are also integrated into employees’
annual performance goals and appraisal process.

The Group emphasises production safety and product safety in every aspect of our
operations. Safety always comes first.

The production safety function is carried out by the Safety Supervision Department
(the “SSD”) of the Group. The major functions of SSD includes, inter alia, the
promotion of risk management culture, compliance and regulatory standards. It also
carries out periodical drills on whole-factory scale, such as fire drill, prevention of dust
explosion review, safety review on working at height and use of corrosive chemicals,
regular staff examination on safety issues, etc.

The product safety function is carried by the Corporate Strategy and Development
Department (the “CSDD”). It carried out product recall drills periodically. In addition,
CSDD also assists our department heads to develop control procedures in their
respective departments.

The management believes that periodic drills provide our employees with
opportunities to train and test their reaction under different critical situations. In
addition, it also allows the Group to evaluate the effectiveness of each of our codes of
conduct and, risk management and internal control procedures.
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Internal audit is an important component of corporate risk management. The internal
audit function is performed by the Group’s Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”). The
major responsibilities of IAD are as follows:

(i) To carry out independent review on business activities;

(i) To analyse any potential control, operational, compliance and financial impact
on weaknesses;

(iif) To report findings on any weakness areas; and
(iv) To suggest improvement and remedy procedures.

Relationship of Audit Committee and the Board under risk
management framework

The Audit Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems at
least annually. Periodical review reports and presentations from management are
provided to the Audit Committee in relation to internal control and risk management
matters. These reports allow the Audit Committee to assess the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems. Whenever a weakness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems is identified, the Audit Committee
is responsible for discussing its potential financial impacts and the corresponding
remedy procedures with the Board and the management. The Group had not been
aware of any material internal control failings or weaknesses affecting its overall
operation during the year under review.

A Risk Review Report set out on pages 30 to 33 summarised our works conducted
and the evaluation of risks associated with the Group during the year under review.

Inside information

An inside information escalation policy is in place and sets out the principles and
internal control procedures for guiding our Directors and relevant employees on the
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and in adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations. The policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time in view of, among others, relevant legal and regulatory updates.

Audit Committee

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, financial controls, internal control and risk management
system of the Group and to provide recommendations and advice to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their terms of
appointment.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai
Wa, Ken. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee performed the following duties:

o Reviewed the Group’s annual report and interim report

o Reviewed the significant accounting policy and the impact of the adoption of
new financial reporting standards

° Discussed the audit issues with the external auditor

o Reviewed the annual internal audit plan

o Made recommendation of the appointment of external auditor

o Assessed the independence of external auditor

° Reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports and risk management

findings with our management
Remuneration Committee

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors.

Our remuneration policy prohibited our Directors from determining his or her
own remuneration. Each Director’'s remuneration package has been considered
and/or reviewed periodically with respect to his or her individual performance,
responsibilities, financial performance of the Group, market practice and other
applicable factors.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
for the financial year 2020 and 2021 are the same. On 17 December 2021, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the annual remuneration package of both
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors for financial year 2021
and has recommended to the Board that the annual remuneration for Directors
should remain unchanged for the financial year 2022.

None of Director participated in any discussion about his own remuneration in the
meetings regarding the review of remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure and
composition of the Board, to implement and review the Board Diversity Policy, to
review and provide recommendations to the Shareholders on the terms of Director’s
service contract, and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board adopts a board diversity policy that, in formally nominating a candidate
the Board shall access the suitability of a proposed candidate by taking into
account factors including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, race, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and independence. Summary
of the Group’s diversity policy is set out in page 37 above.
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The Nomination Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee performed the following

duties:

o Assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors

. Made recommendations on the re-election of retiring Directors to the Board

o Reviewed the background and suitability of a proposed independent non-
executive Director

o Evaluated the structure and composition of the Board

o Reviewed the Company’s Board Diversity Policy

. Reviewed the term of reference of the Nomination Committee

On 17 March 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Board Diversity Policy and recommended some amendments to reflect the
corresponding changes to the Corporate Governance Code and related Listing Rules
which came into effect on 1 January 2022. One of the most important amendments
to our Board Diversity Policy was to set the board gender diversity as a measurable
objective. The Board agreed to adopt these amendments on 18 March 2022 and will
achieve this target by the end of 2024.

Nomination Policy

The Company sets out below the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
contained in the Nomination Policy adopted by the Board.

Nomination Procedures and Process

The factors listed below would be used principally by the Nomination Committee in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from members of the Board if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee before its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by members of
the Board.

o For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an additional member to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

. For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

o A circular will be sent to the shareholders of the Company to provide
them with the name, brief biography, proposed remuneration, (where an
independent non-executive Director is to be nominated) independence
and other information of the proposing candidate in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable laws, rules and regulations including those of
the Listing Rules.
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A shareholder can serve a written notice to the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary of his or her intention to propose a certain person for
election as a Director. This written notice, together with (i) the information of
the candidate as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information as may be considered relevant to his or
her proposed election; and (i) the written consent by that person to the
publication of his or her personal data provided pursuant to (i) immediately
above, by the Company in its corporation communication documents in
compliance with the Listing Rules or as may be required by the Stock
Exchange at the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company
for a period of no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of the general
meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.

Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee

14

Business experience: The candidate should have significant experience
from a senior role in an area of business, public affairs or academia, relevant
to the Company. Awareness of the corn deep-processing industry would be
an advantage but not a requirement in all cases.

Public board experience: The candidate should have relevant expertise and
experience earned as a Board member of a reputable listed company or from
a senior position in his or her industry, public affairs or academia.

Diversity: The candidate should contribute to the Board being a diverse
body, with diversity reflecting gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, qualifications, skills and length
of service. Given the current composition of the Board, a female candidate
would be an advantage.

Standing: The candidate should be of the highest ethical character and have
a strong reputation and standing, both personally and professionally, in his or
her fields.

Time commitment: Each Board member must have sufficient time
available for the proper performance of his or her duties. Directors should be
sufficiently free of other commitments to be able to devote the time needed to
prepare for meetings and participate in induction, training, appraisal and other
Board associated activities.
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o Independence: For the candidate who is proposed as an independent non-

executive Director, he or she must satisfy all the independence requirements
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He or she must always be aware
of threats to his or her independency and avoid any conflict of interest with
the Company. He or she must be able to represent and act in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may see fit
which are in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Nomination Committee and the Board may set specific requirements, depending on
the need of development of the Company, for the candidates.

Shareholders

The Company welcomes enquires from Shareholders. The Board will review
Shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Company’s office at Suite 3312, Tower
1, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or by email
(ir@chinastarch.com.hk).

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, via its website at www.tricoris.com, or by email to
is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com, or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person
at its public counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the Board in order to
promote effective communications between Shareholders and the Company. This
policy is available on our website. The Company recognises the importance of
Shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their
consent, unless required by law.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the
Company can convene an extraordinary general meeting by depositing the requisition
in writing to the Company. The procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene and present
proposals at general meetings, including proposing a person for election as a
Director, are available on our website.

Constitutional Documents

The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional document during the
year under review.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 58, is the chairman of the Board and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Tian is
principally responsible for the Group’s strategic positioning. He is also responsible
for formulating the Group’s business development objectives and ensuring that such
objectives are implemented by the Board accordingly. Mr. Tian is also a director
of Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd. (“Golden
Corn”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shouguang Golden
Corn Biotechnology Limited (“Golden Corn Biotech”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, respectively.

Mr. Tian completed his study of Electricity and Water Irrigation from Water and
Electricity Machinery School in 1981 and graduated from The Shandong Province
Party Committee School of the People’s Republic of China with a diploma in
Economics Management in 1996. Mr. Tian obtained the qualification as a senior
economist in December 2002.

Mr. Tian is beneficially interested in approximately 54.58% of the issued share capital
of Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and is also a director of Merry Boom.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 54, joined the Group in 1998 and is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Gao is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group’s operations and business management. Mr. Gao is also a director of the
following subsidiaries of the Company:

- Golden Corn
- Golden Corn Biotech
- Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited (‘Deneng Golden Corn”)

- Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd
- Shouguang Juneng Musashino Biotechnology Co., Ltd

Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate degree in Physics in 1989 and a Master of
Business Administration degree in 2012 from Shandong University. He was also
awarded the qualification of senior engineer in 2010. Mr. Gao is the permanent vice-
president of China Starch Industry Association.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 53, joined the Group in 1998. Mr. Liu is also a director of
Golden Corn and Golden Corn Biotech respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s
production technology developments and cornstarch production.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Industrial University (subsequently amalgamated
into Shandong University in 2000) in 1990 with an undergraduate degree in Industrial
Management, and obtained a postgraduate diploma in Industrial Economics from the
Economics School of Shandong University in 2003. Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from Shandong University in 2012. Mr. Liu obtained
the qualification as senior engineer in 2002. Mr. Liu is the deputy supervisor of the
Cornstarch Professionals Committee of China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 53, is principally responsible for the overall management
in investment and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group in 2003.
Mr. Yu is also a director of Golden Corn and Golden Corn Biotech respectively.

Mr. Yu graduated from Shandong Hydro Institute in 1990 with a diploma in
Hydro Economic and Financial Management, and obtained a diploma in Finance
Management from Shandong Economics Management Institute in 1998. Mr. Yu
obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional of the People’s Republic of China
issued by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in 1997.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Hua Qiang, aged 50, has been appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 17 May 2016. Professor Hua has been a professor of the School of
Biotechnology and the State Key Laboratory of Bioreactor Engineering of the East
China University of Science and Technology since 2008. He obtained a bachelor and
a master degree in chemical engineering (major in biochemical engineering) from
the Zhejiang University in 1993 and 1996 respectively. He also obtained a doctoral
degree in information engineering from the Kyushu Institute of Technology (Japan)
in 2000. He was appointed as an assistant professor of Institute for Advanced
Biosciences of the Keio University (Japan) from 2001 to 2004, and was appointed
as a postdoctoral scholar of the Department of Bioengineering of the University of
California, San Diego from 2004 to 2007. He had also been a medical research
scientist for Sanford Burnham Prebys Medical Discovery Institute (formerly known as
“Burnham Institute for Medical Research”) (the United State of America) from 2007 to
2008.

Mr. Sun Mingdao, aged 73, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Sun also serves as a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
Mr. Sun is an advisor to the China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Sun had been a deputy director of the research centre and a vice general
manager of Wuhan Huali Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007.
Mr. Sun had served as a standing committee member, and the Sixth and Seventh
Sessions’ chief secretary of China Starch Industry Association respectively.
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Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 56, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue also serves as the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Board.

Mr. Yue is serving as an executive director, the chairman, the chief executive officer,
the company secretary and the compliance officer of Roma Group Limited (“Roma”).
He is an independent non-executive director of Major Holdings Limited (“Major”). He
was an independent non-executive director of Manfield Chemical Holdings Limited
(“Manfield”) for the period from 6 November 2015 to 31 December 2018. The shares
of Roma, Major and Manfield are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with solid experience in accounting, auditing
and corporate finance. Mr. Yue is also a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Colorado State Society of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also holding a specialist certificate and a practicing certificate in corporate
finance of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Senior Management

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of the business and
operation of the Group. These executive Directors are regarded as the member of the
senior management team of the Group.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BB

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
FERBERERAS

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
55 to 117, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(*HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Valuation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use

assets

Refer to note 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies 2.6 and 2.24 respectively.

g%%ﬁ%&%fﬁu&ﬁﬁﬁtgﬁéﬁ’ﬁﬁ

BB 2HEHMBERRMF16R17TUR TR
%2.65%2.24

The key audit matter
Bt EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BHHPEERMEENSE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements.

ERME -BERXBUREHAREENLEHSHYHTRE
NEZM RMPERHERERRHREEE

As at 31 December 2021, carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are approximately
RMB2,004,318,000 and RMB447,167,000 respectively, which
represented approximately 52% of total assets of the Group. It
involves a significant degree of judgement by the management
in assessing whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at
the end of the reporting period which may affect the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
Therefore, it comes to our concern that there is a risk of valuation
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
RIZZ—F+ZA=+—H WX - BEERIZEUKREHR
EEENEREEDINAR AKRE2,004,318,0007t & A KB
447,167,00070 > 15 BEEEELELN2% - BEERETT
EME-BEREBEUAREAEEENRSHARZT R EMA
EEHYE BEERREURCHEEENREELSHNTZEN
BEMREEHEAYE AL WANEEAHME BRER
REURFEREEEETHENRR

No impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.

RBE_Z_—F+__A=+—HLUEFE WwEERTMFBEE
518 o

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate the
management’s assessment of the indicators of impairment
and, where such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing and identify any valuation risk
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

BMNE S RENERT AT E IR E MR E TR EL T
o REREBBMKRNIERT > 57 E 12 EPr7E L AR E R
HoUKRHNME - BRERLEURERAEEENEABER

a0 o
AR

We have discussed with the management on the key
assumptions used in the management’s assessment of the
indicators of impairment. We have also physically inspected
physically inspecting whether the property, plant and equipment
are kept in a good condition on sample basis.
EMERERENREEBTTERENRSEMEANEER
RoHKMITHMEHEYE BRERSBEETEMRDT  WEIESE
BEBER R
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

2.8 and 2.9 respectively.

8 5 UGBV iR B 5T

FEDRN2EEHMBRERM 20K E5THR2.85%
2.9¢°

The key audit matter
FASEEE st HIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt PREAMEENSE

We have identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the loss allowance
involves significant degree of management estimation and may be
subject to management bias.
HREEREEIREEENERG RAEZRNERENR
B RMERTEE R R B BT G FRET SR

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB147,249,000.
W_E2_—F+"B=+—8"
#%147,249,0007T ©

BEEEREEZRETOAR

Expected credit loss (the “ECL”) impairment model has been
adopted based on the provision matrix after considering ageing,
repayment history and/or past due status if respective trade
receivables.

FEEAEERIE ((FREEEBE) RERETN N ZEBIEME S E
WRIBERI BRES ~ BRUE L R,/ B HAI I 18 - IR 4R A SE P T 4R
i o

Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward
looking information including both current and forecast general
economic conditions.

A BEEXDEREBATHEACRERANELRRE 1
FATREM B R (B B A R TRR B ERRLH AR fFH R -

No impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.

N ZEZ—F+ZA=+—HIEFESRBE UERESERRE
580

Our audit procedures were designed to assess and challenge the
assumptions, judgment and basis of the Group’s ECL model on
impairment assessment of trade receivables.
RPBAREFNRFA D RIERER EEEESRRIER
ETENTERREEHBBERANRE  FIET R ERE

We have challenged and assessed the reasonableness of
management’s assumptions, judgment and basis in determining
credit loss allowance on trade receivables by examining the
information used by management, including testing accuracy
of the historical default data, testing trade receivables past due
ageing analysis as at 31 December 2021, on a sample basis,
by comparing individual items in the analysis with the relevant
supporting documents and evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted for forward looking information
including both current and forecast general economic conditions.
BEMBEBHmERNEEECRANER (8FRELENEE
HERESAER 2 —F+"A=+—HNEZERKRNIE
BHARREE D AT) o EEER D AT FR AVME B! TE B e A8 R S8 BA S MR 5T A
EELHEBREZSEMABEMER (BB RBANERLH
AT FH B E A EMER KT L ERENEE & 5 U
HiEEBERFEFHNERR  FERERNGE -

We have also inspected cash received from debtors after year
end relating to trade receivables balance as at 31 December
2021, with the relevant supporting documents, on a sample
basis.

EZAETEREN S —F+ A =+—HEBFAWEERH
RERBEZEBNIBARINIRE » EREEREEREN -
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Mr. Kwan Chi Fung.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwan Chi Fung

Practising Certificate Number: PO6614

Hong Kong
18 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

9:|:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

'TJ@ N LI&

BE_Z_—F+-_A=+t—HLEE

A

2021 2020
—EZ % —ETEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AREFT AREFT
Revenue KA 5 11,639,315 8,892,261
Cost of sales SHE R (10,687,104) (8,332,486)
Gross profit EFH 952,211 559,775
Distribution expenses DIHE R (164,934) (184,229)
Administrative expenses THER (192,013) (166,018)
Research expenses &R (199,648) (28,899)
Other net income HMsWA 6 114,923 80,871
Operating profit ES=F 1P| 510,539 261,500
Finance income RMEWA 7 8,054 15,084
Finance expenses MEEA 8 (7,105) (5,346)
Profit before income tax BRERS M AIF)E 9 511,488 271,238
Income tax expense FTi8f sz 12 (108,658) (64,199)
Profit and total comprehensive income TEEMHREGEEWHEEE
for the year 402,830 207,039
Attributable to: LUTN R IERE, -
Owners of the Company KABHEEB A 345,597 190,120
Non-controlling interests JEEER RS 57,233 16,919
402,830 207,039
Earnings per share attributable to EATEE AELSRER
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) &SREAREERF (AEHT) 13 0.0577 0.0317
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SHP AR R

As At 31 December 2021 W_Z_—F+_B=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F —ECEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[hE AR¥F AR#FT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 16 2,004,318 2,007,661
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17 447,167 429,830
Deposits for acquisition of property, B BB REENRES
plant and equipment 17,555 -
Investments in equities R E 18 1,564 1,940
Deferred tax assets IEIEFRIBE A 25 50,907 64,230
Total non-current assets ERIMEEEE 2,521,511 2,503,661
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 78 19 602,314 811,107
Trade and other receivables B 5 B H i FE =R 20 594,357 896,338
Security deposit for land auction HE T HHRES 21 - 10,401
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITTER 23 - 4,353
Cash and cash equivalents RENRIREEEY 23 1,000,977 341,632
Total current assets MENEEME 2,197,648 2,063,831
Total assets BEHEE 4,719,159 4,567,492
EQUITY b
Equity attributable to owners of the TATEE AEGEER
Company
Share capital [IZIN 24 532,500 532,500
Other reserves HihEE 408,274 379,221
Retained earnings REBERF 2,337,189 2,065,586
3,277,963 2,977,307
Non-controlling interests JEE R RG ER fE 214,059 156,826
Total equity R EE 3,492,022 3,134,133
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BIRR

As At 31 December 2021 HR_ZE_—F+_F=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—% ZEIEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AREFT AREFT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities JERBAE
Deferred income BEIEU A 28 259,411 303,043
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEaE 25 70,554 58,311
Borrowings EEN 27 3,000 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 - 497
Total non-current liabilities JETREI B (RAEEE 332,965 361,851
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 KREMBENR 29 416,302 547,742
Advances from customers BEER®R 30 269,909 331,522
Income tax payable FEFRER 75,606 40,710
Borrowings EEN 27 108,176 126,849
Employee housing deposits BIRERSEE 31 23,741 23,741
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 22 - 341
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 438 603
Total current liabilities REaELEEE 894,172 1,071,508
Total liabilities B{E4EEE 1,227,137 1,433,359
Total equity and liabilities Em Kk BEE%E 4,719,159 4,567,492

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2022.

Tian Qixiang
HE#¥
Director

EF

The notes on pages 60 to 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

EFRN T _EZSTNABRAERBET

o
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FHER
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EHHERBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEE

Share Special Capital
capital reserve reserve

A HRIGE ARG
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
liE:3 AERFR  ARBTR  ARETR

(note)

Non-
Statutory Retained controlling Total
reserve earnings Total interests equity
ik
HERE REER st BRER BEAH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBFR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

(M)

At 1 January 2020 RZEZE5-A-H 532,656 27,080 56,196 285,250 1,920,058 2,821,240 139,907 2,961,147
Share buy-backs BRI (156) - - - 47) (209) - (209)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEFIBREGSNEHEE - - - - 190,120 190,120 16,919 207,039
2020 final civicend “ECBERERE 14 - - - - (33,850) (33,850) - (33,850)
Transfer to statutory reserves BAEERE - - - 10,695 (10,695) - - -
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIB-RETZA=+-AR

ZZ”-f-f-H 532,500 27,080 56,196 295,945 2,065,586 2,977,307 156,826 3,134,133
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEERI B R S MHEE - - - - 345,597 345,507 57,233 402,830
2021 final dividend ZET-ERERE 14 - - - - (44,941) (44,941) - (44,941)
Transfer to statutory reserves Y- - - - 29,053 (29,053) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZIEZ-%+ZB=1+-H 532,500 27,080 56,196 324,998 2,337,189 3,277,963 214,059 3,492,022
Note: B EE :

Special reserve represents (a) the difference between the nominal value of the share capital
and share premium issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired upon the Group’s reorganisation; and (b) the difference
between the consideration paid by the direct subsidiary for the entire registered capital of the
indirect subsidiary and the amount of registered capital of the indirect subsidiary.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
T —F TZTEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= ARBTT ARMEF T
Cash flows from operating activities KETHNIRERE
Cash generated from operations REEENIRE 23(b) 1,154,179 268,965
Income tax paid EBMFRER (48,196) (23,507)
Interest paid BAFE (7,234) (5,307)
Interest received [SElls) 8,054 15,084
Net cash generated from operating activities A& EENEENIR S FEE 1,106,803 255,235
Cash flows from investing activities REEHNRERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment — #1% « i = R & AU R (377,294) (263,980)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BB~ BB R R B Y
plant and equipment BN RESD (17,555) -
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WEEERREEE (17,890) (38,988)
Government grant received BT B 19,293 12,790
Proceeds from disposals of property, REHEWE -WEK
plant and equipment RBEHIFTER 2,071 1,635
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITTEIURLD 4,353 1,316
Payment for security deposit for land auction 15 + #1 A {RE S FIE - (10,401)
Purchase of equity investments BERERE - (2,000)
Decrease in fixed deposits EREFUR LD - 260,000
Net cash used in investing activities KREEHFERANIREFE (387,022) (39,628)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFESNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings REIRITERBFAER 306,334 193,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIRTTER (321,147) (217,505)
Dividends paid EftRRE (44,941) (33,850)
Lease payments iEN=—ENE
— Capital elements —KREEHD (662) (735)
— Interest elements —F B &5 (20) (39)
Share buy-backs B BE ] - (203)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEENERNIREFRE (60,436) (59,332)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RBeRIBEEEBYILIFEE 659,345 156,275
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HHNRERREEEY 341,632 185,357
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ _-_A=+—HMNEEX
Be%EY) 23(a) 1,000,077 341,632
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_——

60

FRA 5 R I 5

E+-BA=1+—HIEE
General information

China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 November 2006. Its ultimate holding
company is Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”"). The address of its
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual report. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) are the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based
sweetener, modified starch and its related products.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new amendments to standards have been
effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021:

Amendment to COVID-19-related rent concessions
HKFRS 16
Amendments to Interest rate benchmark reform —

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

The adoption of these amendments does not have any
impact to the results and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs which were issued before 31 December 2021 and
are pertinent to its operations but not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to

HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policy?

Definition of accounting estimates®

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction?

Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use?
Onerous contracts: Cost of fulfilling a

contract?

Reference to the conceptual
framework?

Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

COVID-19-related rent concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

HKFRS 2018 — 2020 cycle?

1. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

2. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

3. Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

4. Effective date to be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1
2.1.1

2.2

2.3

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group anticipate that the application of these new
amendments or interpretation to standards will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

64

HE_ S —F+_A=+—HLEEE

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.4

2.5

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Segment reporting

The chief operating decision-maker is comprised of the executive
directors of the Company and the senior executive management of
the Group. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. Information relating to
segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such information is
not regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period; and

(ii) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions).

RENBRMIERAIRAR

2

TEFHHEHRE (&
24 DERE
TELERAEACEAATDNT

2.5

EEkrEBESREER K8
NBHERDTRAGTETELDE
REANRERE R -TEE
BERRANBEDEE R FHER
ENHXRR - AMOBEERE
BERE R SRR Ty B &
LERUIFERRTZEERE

AR

SMEIME

(a)

(b)

(c)

DEER ZHE I

SEATREBRZRERYE
BRENEEHHOUZER
EBRFENTIELEIR
BHER (THEEE)
stE - A BHRED MU
ARBES) ARERX
EENMEEERER

A M
Kiko

X RAGE

SNER G5 BE®
ENstEREEMGEDN
ERNERREDINE
B -FHEHILETF K
RERBEZBEDINE
SAENEBEERAGR
M 22 £ B9 9 BE U ot e 65
BB AR -

EEHARE
FEBETHRAER (2
BHEERABBRCE
BRAEANEE) NIEEE
HAERNR2REN  H
BRMBRRAZOT
BRARBBERER !

i) BB TERPT
NNEERARR
HRSHIROIK
HEXME ; &

(i) BIREm PRSI
ARRAZIETH
BERIE > BRIF
T HIERRE
MEE g R
BRI 5 BB
REXNRHE
& RELER
oA KRR
A4z 5 B #REY
XL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than those under construction,
are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment loss.
Property, plant and equipment under construction for production or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Property, plant
and equipment under construction is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15 — 35 years
Plant and machinery 5 - 12 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Other machinery 4 - 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
net income’ in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets are classified into three principal categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”).

An investment in equity, including listed and unlisted, is measured
at FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for trading purpose
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designated the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out note 2.22.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are initially
measured in accordance with revenue recognition policy (note 2.21).
Derivative financial instrument is measured at FVPL (note 2.10).
All other recognised financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and
fixed deposits) of the Group are subsequently measured at amortised
cost.

Financial liabilities, such as trade and other payables (note 2.15),
excluding other tax payables, borrowings (note 2.16), lease liabilities
(note 2.24) and employee housing deposits, are measured at
amortised cost.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9

Credit risk and impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost, such as
trade and other receivables, are subject to the Group’s expected
credit loss (the “ECL”) model. While cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits and fixed deposits are also subject to the
impairment review, the identified loss allowance was immaterial. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(b) set out the details how
the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

Financial assets measured at fair value, such as futures contracts, are
not subject to ECL assessment.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
to provide loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs for
its financial assets at initial recognition and through its life of the
asset. A provision matrix is determined based on historical overdue
pattern, shared risk characteristics, probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each
reporting date the above parameters are updated.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

The following information is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. failure to make payments on their contractually due dates;
o an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
asset’s external or internal credit rating (if available);
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk and impairment of financial assets (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and
o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial,

market or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial assets are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credlit risk ratings.

Any change in the expected credit loss amount is recognised as an
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of financial assets (and the related
impairment allowances) is normally written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the asset becomes 365 days past due or
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

For other receivables, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10

2,12

2.13

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, such as futures contract, are
recognised at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for hedging accounting, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value of inventories is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less loss allowance (note 2.9).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturity of three
months or less.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liability unless the Group has an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is also
provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Short-term employee benefits and pension
obligations

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits and pension
obligations (Continued)

The Group sponsors various defined contribution plans for
its employees in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
These plans are organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments based on certain percentage of the
relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme
which is managed by an approved trustee registered under
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
a maximum of 5% of each individual’s relevant income or a
limited amount as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group and independently administered.

Contributions made to the above respective defined
contribution pension plans are expenses as incurred. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payment is available.

There is no forfeited contributions that may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

2.20

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

(c)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets) and including that of non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees
to save). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. At the reporting date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.20 Provisions (Continued)

2.21

2,22

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of upstream products and fermented and
downstream products is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers, which is taken to be the point in time when
the Group transfers control over the products to the customers.
Revenue excludes value added taxes or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of sales return, if any. The Group does not expect to have
any contract where the period between the transfer of goods to the
customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
result, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the
time value of money.

The Group does not expect to have any contract asset which
represents the Group’s rights to consideration in exchange of goods
that delivered to the customer is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Advances from customers are contract liabilities which represent the
Group’s obligation to render goods to customer for which the Group
has received consideration from the customers.

The Group also does not expect to have any incremental cost
to obtain a contract with a customer. Costs that will be incurred
regardless of whether the contract is obtained are expensed as they
incurred.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.23

2.24

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Leases

A lessee is required to recognise almost all leases on the statement of
financial position which will reflect their “right-of-use” for a period of
time and their associated liability for payments.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables

° variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

o amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees

o the exercise price of purchase option if it is reasonably certain

to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease reflecting the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of initial measurement of lease liabilities

o any lease payment made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less at the commencement date. Low-value items included
[T-equipment and small items of office furniture. Payments associated
with short-term leases and leases of low value items are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.26 Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets
when all of the following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

(4] the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its

development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding
five years.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.27 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence, exposures
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Approximately
7% (2020: 9%) of the Group’s sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entities of the Group.

The operating subsidiaries of the Group mainly
operate in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated in RMB. In addition, most of the
Group’s liabilities are denominated in RMB.
Therefore, the management considers the Group is
not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a

(i)

(i)

Corn kernel price risk

Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the
Group and they are subject to price changes in
the commodity market. During the year, the Group
did not use any commodity futures to control the
exposure of the Group to price fluctuations of corn
kernel. The Group will consider the production
schedule and make bulk purchases from spot market
when the market price of corn kernel is considered as
low.

Cornstarch price risk

Cornstarch is one of the major products of the Group
and it is subject to price changes in the commodity
market. The party which holding a put position of
cornstarch futures contract would not make any profit
if the cornstarch market is prosperity. In other words,
short-selling cornstarch futures contract during the
price-up period would unnecessary increase the
exposure of price risk. The management would use
futures contract to control the exposure of price risk
when the market is extreme volatile or in recession.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
ad hoc short-term borrowings or discount on bank
acceptance bills carried at variable rates, which
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s fixed rate borrowings expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The management
considers the fair value interest rate risk is
insignificant as the amount of fixed rate borrowings is
immaterial.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and bank deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position which represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
its financial assets. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

To manage the risk arising from bank deposits, which
included pledged bank deposits and fixed deposits, the
Group only transacts with reputable banks which are high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has no recent
history of default in relation to these financial institutions.
The credit risk on bank acceptance bills is monitored closely
by the management who will assess the reputation of the
customer’s issuing bank and the risk of recoverability. The
ECL on all bank deposits and bank acceptance bills is close
to zero.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has credit policy to monitor
the credit risk. In general, the credit record and credit period
for each customer are regularly assessed, based on the
customer’s financial condition, historical payment record and
other factors such as current market condition.

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The management
believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables and the
ECL is close to zero.

The Group applies the simplified approach, which permits the
use of expected lifetime losses for all trade receivables from
third parties and related parties.

The Group categories trade or other receivables for write
off when a customer or debtor fails to make contractual
payments. Where trade or other receivables have been
written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBRAMER (&
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMBEKERZR @)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GERE #E)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s TREHEERAEER
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 2 —FRIZEZE

31 December 2021 and 2020: F+ZA=+—H#E

ZREETEHENEER
B FAREERRER

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARSIEEEE IRE4AME EiERHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

2021 —E-—F
Current (not past due) BIHA (R HA) ~ 0% 147,247 -
1 - 60 days past due mH—=x+H 0.50% 2 -
61 — 90 days past due BN+ —Z2N+H 1.50% - -
More than 365 days past due BHBB="/TEH 100.00% - -
147,249 -

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARSIEEEE IRE4ME BRRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

2020 T ITEF
Current (not past due) BRER (REHR) ~ 0% 196,187 -
1 - 60 days past due wH—Z=x1+H 0.50% - -
61 — 90 days past due B+ —Z2N+H 1.50% - -
More than 365 days past due AHBB="/TEH 100.00% 13,845 13,845
210,032 13,845

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience

over the past two years. These rates are adjusted to reflect

differences between economic conditions during the period

over which the historic data has been collected, current

conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over

the expected lives of the receivables.
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HEAREIR @)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MBRKEZR (&)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERAE (8)
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in 8 5 K E A E U R
respect of the trade and other receivables, with exposures S AEETESEES
spread over a number of debtors and customers. NiEERRE BEED 8
REHEBAREE
(c) Liquidity risk (c) THEELEMRE
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash REBEEHES #R
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance ERFEEEBYREE
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations ERERR/TEMNKTE
in cash flows. In addition, the Group also maintains sufficient UARATEERNKERE
banking facilities to meet its future payment requirements. REERESREEHDN
RIS AEEI
HEHNNIRITEERNS
HARRARFAE ©
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TERAXAEESTHEE
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period ZEMERIBABEDEN
at the reporting dates to the contractual maturity dates. DT DT ERBRSE R
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HESAEEH W R R
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payment B TRIEENEEES
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on EHNRERFERE (B
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the EEBEOFER (N5
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: FENFE) RS AR
BRERF] X et B9 F] B AT
) R A S E 0 EH E K
BERHNRFEHE:
Carrying
Within Between Between amount
1 year 1-2years 2-5years Total liabilities
—ENR —FEmE REELE st IREEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AREFR ARBTR ARBFR
2021 —E-F
Trade and other payables B 7 REMERT 398,230 - - 398,230 398,230
Borrowings e 111,841 3,006 - 114,847 111,176
Employee housing deposits £ L EEREE 23,741 - - 23,741 23,741
Lease liabilities HESR 442 - - 442 438
534,254 3,006 - 537,260 533,585
2020 ZTIZF
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER 534,586 - - 534,586 534,586
Borrowings &7 127,615 - - 127,615 126,849
Employee housing deposits ETRERES 23,741 - - 23,741 23,741
Lease liabilities HEAE 614 502 - 1,116 1,100
Futures contracts HEAH 341 - - 341 341
686,897 502 - 687,399 686,617

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce the cost
of capital. The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is determined by total borrowings
to total assets of the Group. During 2021, the Group’s capital
management strategy, which was unchanged from prior year, was
to maintain a lower level of gearing ratio in order to cope with
unexpected change in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirement.

3

HEEREIR (&
32 EBXEE

FEREEREANBERBRER
EEAIFERQENET UBR
REHOKRT SEMEDRTA
ARMFm - BT HESHEEE
R AEETERERRE
XUNREEHR - PARRROA
BRI HERE S FEL
HEEE A - A EBRIERAR
EREREREE - ARLEERR
REENERBIEFUEERE
BE-R_Z_—F > KX&EAZ
BEAEERBREFBRIEHER
EE 3> DUME S A I 0 Y 28 25 4
B ARRBREAFAER -

KABHEERWE ARG HA
BTERIIEEREREZR

2021 2020

—E—F —ECREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AEB®ETIT

Total borrowings BTN 4E %R 111,176 126,849

Total assets EEMHE 4,719,159 4,567,492

Gearing ratio BARLEE 2.4% 2.8%
Financial value estimation 3.3 WMBEEEM

Fair value measurements are categorised into three different levels
based on the degree to which the inputs used to arrive at the fair
value of the assets and liabilities are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets (for example: the Stock Exchange or other
recognised commodity market) for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date. The prices of futures
quoted in a recognised commodity market are example of
Level 1 inputs.

- Level 2 inputs are those, other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Financial value estimation (Continued)

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. The Group generally
classifies assets or liabilities as Level 3 when their fair value
is determined using unobservable inputs of the assets or
liabilities. This would include latest financial statements. The
investment in unlisted equity, after considering its business
model, fall into this category and its fair value is measured on
a recurring basis.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of the
reporting period.

There is no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation on inventories

The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods, work-in-progress and
raw materials primarily on the estimated future selling price and
market conditions. Where the estimates of the net realisable value
are less than expected, a material allowance may arise. The Group
reassesses these estimates regularly.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives and estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to that of previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is estimated using the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposals and its value-in-use. If the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade receivables
by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where the estimation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss
in the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group keeps
assessing the expected credit loss of trade receivables during their
expected lives.
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Revenue and segment information
The Group’s operating segments are as follows:

Upstream products — the manufacture and sale of cornstarch
and ancillary corn-refined products

Fermented and — the manufacture and sale of lysine,
downstream products starch-based sweetener, modified starch
and other products

The operating segments are identified in accordance with the economic
similarity and distinction of our products. For the purpose of assessing
segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the chief
operating decision-maker assesses and monitors the segment revenues,
margins and results attributable to each reportable segment. Inter-segment
sales or provision of materials to other segments is not measured.

Interest income and expense are not included in the result for each operating
segment as these are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
reportable segments.

Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of certain government
grants and corporate costs respectively which cannot be allocated to
individual segments.

Sales between segments are charged at cost or with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices. The revenue from external parties reported to the management is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE
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Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5 WARSEER (&)
Fermented
and
Upstream downstream
products products Unallocated Total
TR
LiBER THEM b i a5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®ETFR ARBFR
2021 —E—F
Sales to external customers mINREFIHE 8,576,482 3,062,833 - 11,639,315
Inter-segment sales D ERRS I & 220,091 - - 220,091
Reportable segment profit AIERE D EF)E 442,997 333,072 - 776,069
Unallocated income KOEUA 56,280
Unallocated expenses Evalistiba (321,810)
Finance income B WA 8,054
Finance expenses MEER (7,105)
Profit before income tax FRPTISIR AT 511,488
Other segment information: Hith o Ep&E -
Depreciation TE 90,331 90,096 78,823 259,250
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Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5 WARSEER (&
Fermented
and
Upstream  downstream
products products Unallocated Total
BER
EREES T E SR FAEL &&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETT
2020 T TEF
Sales to external customers MIMREFIHE 6,738,510 2,153,751 - 8,892,261
Inter-segment sales DEEIHE 236,911 - - 236,911
Reportable segment profit AR E D EFAE 436,538 109,446 - 545,984
Unallocated income FABEUWA 45,485
Unallocated expenses E iz (329,969)
Finance income EI=EON 15,084
Finance expenses MEER (5,346)
Profit before income tax BRETS I AIFE 271,238
Other segment information: HhnEp&E
Depreciation e 89,857 94,282 66,875 251,014

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, all sources of revenue
are recognised at a point in time.

Based on the place of the operation of external customers, revenue
attributed to the PRC and other countries is RMB10,810,954,000 and
RMB828,361,000 (2020: RMB8,119,899,000 and RMB772,362,000)

respectively.

The Group’s assets, liabilities and capital expenditures are predominately
attributable to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

6 Other net income 6 HB A
2021 2020
—E—F —ECREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT
Amortisation of government grants (note 28) BT Bh Ay 8 (MF5228) 62,925 58,821
Government grants (note) BFEeh (i sE) 36,496 1,543
Gain on sale of scrap material SHERER 2 W am 17,317 11,521
Electricity and related services B RERRES 610 4,348
Gain on futures contracts EENNE 333 2,524
Accounts payable written back A EIEENE - 3,996
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, HEYE -BER
plant and equipment RENWE, (B1E) 1,075 (1,231)
Written off of property, WEEYZE -~ BB & E
plant and equipment (3,091) -
Net foreign exchange loss EREIEFEB (1,958) (4,036)
Others Hih 1,216 3,385
114,923 80,871
Note: BI5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the government grants mainly represented
subsidies of approximately RMB12,594,000 and RMB23,310,000 from local
government for supporting business development and researching activities
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the government grants mainly
represented a subsidy of approximately RMB1,176,000 from local government for
supporting employment.

The government grants were granted at the discretion of the government and

BE_Z_—F+_HA=+—HLEE>
BN EERM A BN ASZREBERE
RMEEHMERNENDIGARE
12,594,0007t &2 A R #23,310,0007T c & &
ECEE+ A+ —HIEEE BRE
BhF EiEM 5 BN A S EEMIEHRMNEL
# AR #1,176,0007T

BB ABERNERE  WEIFEE

were not recurring in nature. (=
7 Finance income 7 BEWKA
2021 2020
B TECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Interest income on MTFEENFEWA

— Bank deposits —IRITEMR 7,142 13,399
— Undue bank acceptance bills —REFRRTRREE 912 1,685
8,054 15,084
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

Research expenses include cost of inventories staff costs and depreciation, which
are included in the above respective expenses, in the Research and Development

Department of the Group.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

RENBRMIERAIRAR

8 Finance expenses 8 MEEA
2021 2020
T —F —TTH
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
Interest on TFEENHE
- Borrowings — &= 3,505 3,807
— Discounted bills receivables — BRI EZ 3,580 1,500
- Lease liabilities (note 26) —HEaE& (EE2ee) 20 39
7,105 5,346
Profit before income tax 9 PRETIS IR AIF) B
The major expenses of the Group are as follows: REBNFEEREZNOT ©
2021 2020
—E—F —ETHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARBTT
Cost of inventories FEA 10,747,155 8,210,776
Salaries, wages and other benefits e - ITEREMER 215,122 180,065
Pension scheme contributions BIRESEHEIHR 14,348 10,392
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZEITE (5E16)
plant and equipment (note 16) 248,296 241,313
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 17) BREEETE (EE17) 10,954 9,701
Research expenses (note) EER (M5 199,648 28,899
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 24 6 3 B
- Audit service —BIZRF 785 766
- Non-audit service —IEBIZARTE 245 271
Note: MIEE -

MAERABEAERMERZEFENE 8
TRlARITE (BEstA LB ERXEA) -
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Benefits and interests of directors 10 EFHNEMKRER
Details of directors’ emoluments of the Company are set out below: RABIEENFHIFBEHRINWT :
Pension
scheme
Fees Salaries contributions Total
ik e RAEHIMR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ETFR ARBEFT ARBFT
2021 ZEI-fF
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Tian Qixiang HE#EE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun BtELE - 450 85 535
Mr. Liu Xianggang AREEE - 410 85 495
Mr. Yu Yingquan FREEE - 410 - 410
Independent non-executive directors: BIFRTES !
Professor Hua Qiang TERHIR 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao RAERYE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERE 91 - - 91
Total aat 191 1,750 170 2,111
2020 “ECRE
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Tian Qixiang HE#LE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun BtELE - 450 67 517
Mr. Liu Xianggang AKEEE - 410 67 477
Mr. Yu Yingquan FHREE - 410 - 410
Independent non-executive directors: BIFRITES:
Professor Hua Qiang TERHE 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao BBEELE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERE 9% - - 98
Total At 198 1,750 134 2,082
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the retirement benefits BME_T_—FR-_FZFF+A
paid to Mr. Gao Shijun and Mr. Liu Xianggang are related to their services as a =T-HLEFE ARt ERER2ISE
director of the Company and its subsidiaries. FTEZMHBRAKBH D REERETER
B EM B AT EEAER
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —2——&&% 03
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

11 Individuals with highest emoluments 11 REFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2020: rEBRELREHALTH =2 (22
three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are reflected in TE I ZZ)ARRABENES BENWE
the analysis in note 10. The emoluments of the remaining two (2020: two) R0 DT 2T cer Tt (22
individual was as follows: TH W) ALBEWT ¢

2021 2020

T —F —EBTERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%FT AREFT

Salaries e 1,328 1,388

Pension scheme contributions BREETEIHRR 30 32

1,358 1,420

The emoluments paid to the above individuals fell within the following bands: BRUTRIRNZ Bt A2 2%

Number of individuals

ALTHE

2021 2020

—E—F —TTH

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ Z%1,000,00078 7T 1 1

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 £ = 1,500,000 75 1 1

12  Income tax expense 12 Friefiz

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEIEHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBFT

Current income tax BERPRISR

— PRC Enterprises Income Tax (‘EIT”) —HE PSR (TREMSR) 90,720 32,451

— Over-provision in prior years — B FEBIEEE (7,763) (3,998)

— Other PRC withholding tax —HMPEENR 135 334
Deferred tax (note 25) IRIEFRTE (F15E25) 25,566 35,412
108,658 64,199
The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the PRC EIT Law and its AEEZ FTEEFNRPBET - REFEFE
Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for EMBREZREEHMA > FEW B
both years, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is recognised as NEPRMEEEZREH25% EARE
high technology enterprise is entitled to enjoy a preferential EIT rate of 15% E—EEDIASRMEENKNERR
(2020:15%). RN ZABAER15% (ZEZTF !

16%) BB REMERE-

94  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED HERIIZERERAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

12

Income tax expense (Continued) 12

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group entities’
profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong during both years.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law and its Implementation Regulation, non-PRC
resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10% (unless reduced by
tax treaties/arrangements) on dividends receivable from PRC enterprises
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The Group adopted the 10%
withholding tax rate for PRC withholding tax purposes during the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
income tax as follows:

FRGIZH (@)

HRAEENEENMEFEANLEE
EEELNERNAE KA EARSENE
TRIEL R -

RIBPEIEEFEREREETAR >
FHEERCERKFTBRCXE-ZS
NEFE—FB—HEMMERABEELNRS
0% BN E WA (BRIEIR U
E/BHTTHBENRE) - RBEEZR
T ERZEZEFE+R=+—HL
FE AEEDRPREBINREMI0%B9
BN

AF E PSR S ] RS 8 Al F)F
HERWT :

2021 2020

—E—F —_BZH

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREBTT

Profit before income tax RS IR AT R 511,488 271,238
Notional tax on profit before income tax BIRFTS MR AAE LB B =

at applicable rates FEZRERE 126,326 65,588

Tax effects of THEEBNRBEE

— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes —FAMNRFEZ 892 3,768

— Income not subject to tax —BAERRUA (143) (530)

— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEEBEEE (7,763) (3,998)

— Tax deduction in the PRC —RERIER % (17,789) (3,963)

- PRC dividend withholding tax (note 25(a)) —hERE E T8I0 (HI5E25(a)) 7,000 3,000

— Other PRC withholding tax —HAhEENR 135 334

108,658 64,199
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

13

14

96

Earnings per share 13

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of

BRkE

KRB EANEEBREREFTHIZU

the Company is based on the following data: THIEHE !
2021 2020
T —F —TTH
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KABHEE NEMLFH
(RMB’000) (NR#Fm) 345,597 190,120
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITEBRMET S (TR
in issue (thousands) 5,994,132 5,995,591
The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December HREBEZ_EZ_—FRZZEZEF+Z
2021 and 2020 were the same because there was no dilutive potential B=+—HIEFEHEREBEIANE
ordinary share. EEER WEREARKEERAER -
Dividends 14 KRB
Dividend payable to shareholders attributable to the previous financial year, BEMBEERMG RAEEARI AT
approved and paid during the year: TETIRERIRE -
2021 2020
—E—%F ZEIEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
2020 final dividend of HK0.90 cents per share ZEIETFERARESR0.90E
(2019: HK0.62 cents) (ZZB—HL4F © 0.6238L) 44,941 33,850

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HKO0.69 cents (2020: HK0.90 cents) per share, amounting to HK$41,360,000
(2020: HK$53,947,000). The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period is subject to approval by shareholders in forthcoming general
meeting and has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2021.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE
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15

Subsidiaries 15

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company has the following direct
and indirect interests in its subsidiaries. The kind of legal entity of these
subsidiaries is limited liability company. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated:

Place of
incorporation
Name of company and business Principal activities
R SRR R AR E S B TBEH
Directly held:
BERE:
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. BVI, Hong Kong Investment holding
RAREERREE BA REZER
China Starch Group Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
FEBRHEBRRAT EX REER
Indirectly held:
MERE:
Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden PRC Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch,
Corn Development Co., Ltd* H lysine and related products
(“Golden Corn”) FERBETARN BERMEHER
LIREHEREERAEBRAR
EZ3)
Shouguang Golden Far East Modified PRC Research, development, manufacture, and sales of
Starch Company Limited* H modified starch, cornstarch, glucose, maltose,
EXERREBUBNERAR dextrin, animal feed additives, food-grade enzymes,
biobased materials, and related products
e L ERBHE RN TRBH BER EFR
15 DERIAME B RRE EMEEMEK
HERER
Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited ~ PRC Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch, starch-based
BEEESEREMBERAA H sweetener and related products
LERHBETRRN RDBREHER
Shouguang Golden Corn Biotechnology PRC Research, development, manufacture and sales of
Limited* (“Golden Corn Biotech”) H starch, food additives, feeds, amion acids and
EAEEXREVRBEERAT related products
(& EREMRE) e £ EREE RN RYRNA B S 2R
TERER
Shouguang Juneng Musashino PRC Research, development, production and sale of
Biotechnology Co., Ltd* H lactate and other related products.
(“Juneng Musashino”) M EERHEAREREMERER
%%Emmmmﬁ RAE
(BERES)

*

English transliteration is for identification only.

Note:

Juneng Musashino was incorporated in August 2020. In light of the development of new
COVID-19 variants, both shareholders of Juneng Musashino unanimously agreed to
postpone share capital contribution schedule. As at 31 December 2021, Golden Corn
provided approximately RMB5,000,000 (2000: RMB5,000,000) to Juneng Musashino as
its working capital.

b=

M- —ER-S-BE+ A
=+—8 FRFETARERBAT S
B BRI RSB AT
BRENABRAT RBEIII
HEZRNEINAEBR

Particulars of

issued and Interest held
paid up share capital by the Group
BRETRBEREHE FEEMEEED
Us$240 100%
240%ETT

HK$1 100%
1T

RMB700,000,000 100%
A E#700,000,0007%

US$13,850,000 100%
13,850,000% 75

RMB200,000,000 91%
A E#200,000,0007%

RMB200,000,000 55%
A E#200,000,0007%

Note 75%
Lk

Y OEXGEREMRBER -

By & -

EAREBR-_F_2F/\[afmr- %
HRCOVID- 19N RSN E R EfET
BENRR —HNASHEROEEE -1
2 —F+A=+—H 2FKAEmH
HEZFRMEL AR KS,000,0007T (ZZZTZ
&1 AR ¥5,000,0007T) (FAHEBEE® -
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15

98

Subsidiaries (Continued) 15

The following table lists out the information relating to Golden Corn Biotech,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material non—controlling interest
(“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage JEERRRG R ER B OLE
Current assets MENE E

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current liabilities ViE=KE

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Net assets BERE

Carrying amount of NCI JEERR G R R REE
Revenue WA

Profit for the year KEEFE

Total comprehensive income REWmAREE

Profit allocated to NCI PDEEFERRKRRERNFE
Dividend paid to NCI IS FIEIERE R ERNRE
Cash flows from operating activities REKLEEHNRERE
Cash flows from investing activities REREGFHNRERE
Cash flows from financing activities REMREEHNRERE

MEBAE (&

TRV EEMEAEEE—ERERFE
Iepes i (RERRRED ) B A
Bl FOREMRRINER - LIT 25898
BERMEERS AEAREREHEA
LNkl

2021 2020
—EZ—F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT ARBETT
45% 45%
284,951 645,767
1,252,147 1,324,130
(1,167,629) (1,725,682)
(34,921) (22,960)
334,548 221,255
150,547 99,565
3,222,306 2,879,429
113,293 25,304
113,293 25,304
50,982 11,387
189,429 253,215
(154,276) (193,134)

- (30,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE-—F+_HF=+—HILFE

16  Property, plant and equipment 16 YE -BERRZE
Plant and
equipment
Plant and Motor Other under
Buildings machinery vehicles machinery  construction Total
HERER
BF RBERHESR RE Hithi% 2 R st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR AREBTE ARBTT ARETR ARETE

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_F_THE+-A=+—-H

LHEE
Net book value at 1 January 2020 RIZZEE—F—HY

REFE 531,629 802,843 8,891 39,429 703,200 2,085,992
Additions HE - 5,533 3,843 2,720 153,752 165,848
Transfers upon completion SERL RS E R 204,455 491,000 - 3,769 (699,224) -
Disposals i 3 (2,761) - (102) - 2,866)
Depreciation charge for the year FENEER (36,754) (191,498) (4,085) (9,026) - (241,313)
Net book value at 31 December 2020 RIZZEE+ZA=1+—HH

REFE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 167,728 2,007,661

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZE-Z&+-A=+—HRK

—E”-¥—-B-H
Cost A 887,684 2,059,834 27,085 108,735 157,728 3,241,066
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt EREE (188,357) (954,717) (18,386) (71,945) - (1,233,405)
Net book value REFE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 157,728 2,007,661
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_T-_—-£+-B=+—-H

HEE
Net book value at 1 January 2021 RZZ2Z—F—F—HK

REZE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 157,728 2,007,661
Additions "B 455 9,403 2,796 2,771 233,615 249,040
Transfers upon completion RS 6,335 203,817 - 1,010 (211,162) -
Disposals/written-off HE /88 - (3,679) - (408) - (4,087)
Depreciation charge for the year FENEER (40,622) (194,923) (3,799) (8,958) - (248,296)
Reclassification EEipax] - 20,968 - (20,968) - -
Net book value at 31 December 2021 RIE-&E+"F=+—AK

REFE 665,495 1,140,703 7,702 10,237 180,181 2,004,318
At 31 December 2021 RZB-—-%£+-A=+-H
Cost IS 886,767 2,324,307 33,046 44,683 180,181 3,468,984
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EstFERAE (221,272) (1,183,604 (25,344) (34,446) - (1,464,666)
Net book value REZE 665,495 1,140,703 7,702 10,237 180,181 2,004,318
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

17  Right-of-use assets 17 (FRAEEE
The amount in respect of leases are as follows: ESZEWNT .
Land
use right Properties Total
FERERE Y/ES st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTRT ARBTET

Net book value at 1 January 2020 R_ETEF—H—HB
BREFE 398,683 1,860 400,543
Acquisition for the year R E RS 38,988 - 38,988
Depreciation charge for the year FEITEER (9,024) 677) (9,701)
Net book value at 31 December 2020 AR EF+ZRA=+—HK
and 1 January 2021 2T —HF—F—HW
ERmEFE 428,647 1,183 429,830
Acquisition for the year REE RS 28,291 - 28,291
Depreciation charge for the year FEINEER (10,278) (676) (10,954)
Net book value at 31 December 2021 AR —F+ZA=+—HW
EREFEE 446,660 507 447 167
The interests of land use right are located in the PRC. The Group also leases THIE AN ERAN PR AERITR
a property in Hong Kong. The rental agreement is made for a fixed period of 3 SEEE—BEYE - -HemRRE TR
years and does not impose any restriction or covenant. 5111 A= 4 WE ARG 325 -

10() CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI AIRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

18 Investments in equities 18
Financial asset at FVPL BATFEFAEBEGRZEHEE
- Unlisted equity —JE LTRRRE

RiERE
2021 2020
—E_—F TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARBTT
1,564 1,940

In March 2020, the Group subscribed capital contribution of RMB2,000,000
to Tiangong Biotechnology (Tianjin) Limited (K TA#RIE; (Ki2) BRA
B)) (“Tiangong”), which was an independent third party not connected with
the Group or a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company. In January 2022, the Group has provided the remaining capital
contribution of RMB8,000,000 to Tiangong.

Tiangong has registered capital of RMB100,000,000, of which 10% is held
by the Group. The principal activities of Tiangong are to carry out research
and development of corn derivatives and transfer its research outcomes to
market. Tiangong is a private company. The Group has neither control nor
significant influence over Tiangong.

AR EBFE=-RA AEERXIEY
B (KR ARQE ((RXI) IHEE
AR #2,000,0007T > MKk L% S84 % E
RARTAEAL (FER EHHRA) 1
ERENBIE = R_ZTZ_F—
A AEEEAXRIREFGFHEARK
8,000,0007T °

XINEMERZ ARTE100,000,000
T EFI0%HEAEERFE - RINEE
(EBEMBEERTEER TR EFER
REEMIB o R IBAE AT c REEH
KRI W mEG I EEATE -

2021 2020

—E-—f —EoTE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January w—B—H 1,940 -
Purchases BE - 2,000
Total unrealised loss recognised in profit or loss ~ RiEB& AR 2 R IREIE4E28 (376) (60)
At 31 December R+=-B=+—H 1,564 1,940
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

19 Inventories 19 =&
2021 2020
T —F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AE®EF T
Raw materials B 414,496 547 167
Work in progress TS 19,169 70,341
Finished goods SR MR 168,649 193,599
602,314 811,107

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB10,747,155,000 (2020: RMB8,210,776,000). These
inventories were used for the production of finished goods and research

BHE_ZT_—EF+"_B=+—HILE
E BRABRINGEESEAARK
10,747,155,0007c (ZZE - F . AR

activities. 8,210,776,0007T) - ZEEFERANEESR
iR R iR T EE) o
20 Trade and other receivables 20 EBZKRHEMEKRR

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBFT
Trade receivables & 5 WG 147,249 210,032
Less: Loss allowance RS IEEE - (13,845)
147,249 196,187
Bank acceptance bills RITARERE 204,407 374,065
Prepayments and other tax receivables BNRREMERRIE 235,078 313,541
Others Hih 7,623 12,545
594,357 896,338

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are mainly denominated
in RMB.

1()2 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI AIRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

20

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

Trade and other receivables (Continued) 20 EBZKREMEWER E
The movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the year is rEEBZRIEANEBEEEHNT :
as follows:
2021 2020
e —%F T TEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREBTT
At 1 January R—B—A 13,845 13,845
Amounts written off MitE %8 (13,845) -
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H - 13,845
The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 150 days (2020: 0 KEE-—RAETERNEERANTEE
to 150 days) to customers. —BATHCZZIZH . EE—FHH+
H) o
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables RREHR BREWTRBEZHAR
based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance is as follows: MREEBEHRNERE 2O T :
2021 2020
—EZ—% B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBEF T
0 - 30 days TE=+H 136,162 153,344
31 - 60 days =+—%X+H 6,361 32,072
61 — 90 days At+—=hn+8 2,927 6,248
Over 90 days A+BMUE 1,799 4,523
147,249 196,187
At the end of the reporting period, the bank acceptance bills consist of: R|REAFR BVITERRBERIE
2021 2020
B —momE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREF T
Bills on hand FEERE 124,599 152,040
Endorsed bills HERE 79,808 171,266
Discounted bills BHIREHE - 50,759
204,407 374,065
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —z——&&% [()3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

20

21

22

104 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

HE_ S —F+_A=+—HLEEE
Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period of 180 days
(2020: 180 days). There is no recent history of default on bank acceptance
bills.

As at 31 December 2021, bank acceptance bills of RMB8,428,000 were
pledged to banks for securing bills payables. As at 31 December 2020, bank
acceptance bills of RMB4,256,000 and discounted bills of RMB50,759,000
were pledged to banks for securing bills payables and bank borrowings
respectively.

Security deposit for land auction

The amount of RMB10,401,000 was paid to the Natural Resources and
Planning Administration of Shouguang Municipality as a security deposit for
an online land auction held in February 2021. In March 2021, the Group bade
a piece of land with an area of approximately 67,621 square metres. The total
land premium for this land was RMB27,190,000 and this security deposit was
used to set off the land premium.

Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instruments represented outstanding cornstarch

futures as at the end of reporting period. The futures are not in any part of
hedging relationship.

RENBRMIERAIRAR

20

21

22

B7 REMBWR (&

RTARRE—RIPHRA—ENTH
(Z2Z2F : —\ANTH) RITAR
RPN EENTE

R_E-_—F+"B=+—H' AR
8,428,000t WIRIT A R ZIR B IKIF F IR
T IFARNEENIRF R_T T4
+ZB=+—H> AR¥4,256,0007TH
IRITR R EH KR ARES50,759,0007THY A
RERBIRFFIRT DIMEARNER
K RITERRAYIE IR o

HE D MBREENRIE

ENSEATERAERNREBZEEA
510,401,000 FAR S - —F =
BRETNG EIRE T HNREERE
RIEZ—E=F > AEEEHIE—EY
67,621 75 K 89 £ 3 o 2% £ A9 48 + 3t H
Ee A ARM27,190,0007T 0 BZRES
MIBRARIRIEZ T H H RS o

TESMIA
TESBMTRERREERRTANE

KB HAE - IE R B PR R ER

B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B EREMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

23 Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 23
other cash flow information

(a) Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents

ERARITER - RERREF
BEMkEMBEEREN

EEFRTERRRERR
EEEY

2021 2020

e —%F T TEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT AREBTT

Pledged bank deposits BERIRITER - 4,353
Cash and cash equivalents RERASEEY

— Cash at bank and on hand —IRITRFHEEE 1,000,977 341,632

Total st 1,000,977 345,985

As at 31 December 2021, deposits of RMB991,405,000 (2020:
RMB342,391,000) were placed with banks in the PRC. Remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2020, the pledged bank deposits were pledged to a
bank for securing bills payable (note 29).

WZE2Z—F+"B=+—H>
AR #991,405,00070 (ZE -
£ 1 AR%342,391,0007T) B97F
ML EMRRENRIT - ZE
BEEHPEEBEZRR P EET
AR IMNEE HIFR A R ARG 0

RZE2EZZFE+-HA=+—8H"
ERIRIRITERILIEFR FIRITIE
AT EENIER (HsE29) o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —z=—&&% [()5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

23 Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 23 BifRETEFR REAHEE

other cash flow information (Continued) EBYMREMRETER &)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated (b) KR EEKSEEENIR
from operations EH IR
2021 2020
T —F —TTH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBFT
Profit before income tax FREF1SIATH)E 511,488 271,238
Adjustments for: KAELTIER
Finance income RMEWA (8,054) (15,084)
Finance expenses MEEA 7,105 5,346
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥R B HITE 248,296 241,313
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEINE 10,954 9,701
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant and HEYE - HE K
equipment RN (W) BBE (1,075) 1,231
Written off of property, plant and equipment — #{EH¥) %~ B = f 5% & 3,091 -
Amortisation of government grants BT /B BV i1 (62,925) (58,821)
Accounts payable written back O - (3,996)
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial TEEMI AN
instruments AFE UrH) BB (341) 341
Fair value loss on equity securities EAREEFHNAFEEE 376 60
Foreign exchange losses on financing activities B & & EE £ E R EIE (860) -
Changes in working capital: EEESEH .
Decrease/(increase) in inventories HFERD, (8 208,793 (272,330)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 REMEURERL (80
receivables 301,981 (54,355)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 R ELfth FE A< Fum (3,037) (14,826)
(Decrease)/increase in advances from BHREICRL) /0
customers (61,613) 159,147
Cash generated from operations KREELXNRE 1,154,179 268,965
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

23

Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 23
other cash flow information (Continuea)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

ERARITER - RERREF

BEMREMBEEREN (@)

(c) BMEFIFMELEEBROHE

METDFELEEENHEERN

follows: T
Lease
Borrowings liabilities
EEA HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE®FT AREFR
At 1 January 2020 WZE-Z5—H—H 151,354 1,835
Cash flows: BERE .
Payment of lease liabilities HEsEMR - (739)
Payment of interest on lease liabilities HESEFN AR - (39)
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITREFPIER 193,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIRTER (217,505) -
Other changes: Hiths) :
Interest on lease liabilities HESEHE - 39
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZEHE+ZR=+—HRKRIZE
1 January 2021 ——%—F—H 126,849 1,100
Cash flows: HERE ©
Payment of lease liabilities HEEENR - (662)
Payment of interest on lease liabilities HEEENEN™M - (20)
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITERAER 295,000 -
Proceeds of other borrowings HMEMPIER 11,334 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIRTER (321,147 -
Other changes: Hithgs) .
Interest on lease liabilities HEAETE - 20
Exchange adjustments BRI (860) -
At 31 December 2021 WZE-_—-5+-HA=+—H 111,176 438
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —Z=—%&% [()7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

23 Pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and 23
other cash flow information (Continuea)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the

BRPRITER - RERRESE
BEYMREMBREREN (&

(d HERESRHLAE

BB AR RERT IR

following: ™
2021 2020
T —F —EBTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFT
Within operating cash flows RREREREN 690 672
Within investing cash flows REREREREN 17,890 49,389
Within financing cash flows KREREREN 682 774
19,262 50,835
These amounts related to the following: ZETHEELTEEARR
2021 2020
—E—F ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFT
Purchase of right-of-use assets BETREESE 17,890 38,988
Lease rentals paid EfNEERES 1,372 1,446
Payment for security deposit for HELTHNREERIE
land auction (note 21) (Fg5E21) - 10,401
19,262 50,835
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AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

Share capital 24

Authorised: ERE

Number of shares anESEE]

At 31 December 2020 and 2021 RIETEFR_F—F
+ZB=+—H

10,000,000,000

2020
BB

10,000,000,000

The number of authorised share capital of the Company is comprised of
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each.

Issued and fully paid:

Number of shares
At 1 January
Share buy-backs

BEITREE
i 8 H
R—R—H
FEEIR G

XANBHNAEAEREAHEE BB
10,000,000,0008% & i EI1E0.1078 T Y &

bl

5,994,132,043

2020
EORE

5,995,892,043
(1,760,000)

At 31 December

R+—B=+—H

5,994,132,043

5,994,132,043

Equivalent nominal value of
ordinary shares (RMB’000)

ZEREFEE ARETT

532,500

532,500

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FET TS ER ZR MY BT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEE

25 Deferred taxation 25 REMIA
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (a) EREINEERBEERE
&
The components and movement of net deferred tax assets are as IRIEFR TEE AP ERVAR R ER D &
follows: BT
Depreciation
Impairment allowances PRC
of property, in excess of dividend
plantand  Government the related  withholding
equipment grants Tax losses  depreciation tax Total
B8R
FEN:1 ER FERE
e A BT RIESEH ERE R CH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETRT  ARBTR  ARETR

Deferred tax arising from: REUTERENEERE
At 1 January 2020 RIEZZE-F-—R 1977 75,578 1,880 (34,104) (4,000) 41,331
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) RERNR (fi5E12) (70) (13,255) (1,880) (17,207) (3,000) (35,412)
At 31 December 2020 and RZFZRELZ HE —A
1 January 2021 R-BI—£—f— 1907 62,323 - (51311) (7,000) 5919
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) PRERNR (fiFE12) (70) (13,253) - (5,243) (7,000) (25,566)
At 31 December 2021 RIZ2Z-F£+ZF=1+—H 1,837 49,070 - (56,554) (14,000) (19,647
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated R E I AR R R R R
statement of financial position is as follows: MEEE,/ (BE WOTF:
2021 2020
T —F T THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT
Deferred tax assets FIERIBE E 50,907 64,230
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIBE B & (70,554) (58,311)
(19,647) 5,919
(b)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) KERWEREREAR
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC dividend withholding R AR B RS H AR E B A F
tax relating to certain undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC BB BB M L B s S
subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls the BABETARD KA BEAERN
dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment RERSENRERIELRIE
made by the management as at the end of the reporting period, it BE-REEEBNRREHHRATN
was determined that the undistributed profits of RMB1,547,399,000 EHBET G HR AR AT HE
(2020: RMB1,640,734,000) of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries IS B A B B9 K 9k F /Fﬁ AR
would not be distributed in the foreseeable future. 1,547,399,0007C (ZEZZF: A
R #1,640,734,0007T) A& A
RERIEHDIK
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AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

26

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

Lease liabilities 26 fHE&SE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s TRIITAEBHEGENRSBARDY
lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period. FIERSASIHAH ©
2021 2020
2 -F —BoEfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREBTT
Total lease liabilities HESERRE 438 1,100
Analysed as: PA
Current liabilities mENaE 438 603
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - 497
438 1,100
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss REEANFEDSASEAMANESZIEE 2
is as follows: MU
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EIER
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEasM e (k) 20 39
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI IAEENREX 679 662
Expense relating to low-value assets BREEBEEENMAX 11 10
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —Z——&&% []]
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SHMERRMNEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-Z_—F+_-_F=+—HILFE

27 Borrowings 27 &

J12 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:

(a) By year of repayment

AEBERI TR EE

(a) BERFERED

2021 2020
T —F ZETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AR®F T
Bank borrowings: RITER -
— Within one year ——FR 100,000 126,849
Other borrowings: HhfEmr -
— Within one year ——FR 8,176 -
— Between one and two years ——EMFE 3,000 -
111,176 126,849

(b) By secured and unsecured borrowings

(b) HBERREERERE

bal
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARF ARBFT
Secured Bk - 76,849
Unsecured K 111,176 50,000
111,176 126,849

As at 31 December 2021, the loan of RMB3,000,000 (denominated in RMB)
was provided by Weifang Financial Holding Group Limited, a state-owned
enterprise, and bore a fixed interest rate of 3% per annum. The loan of
RMB8,176,000 (denominated in HK$) was provided by Merry Boom Group
Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, and bore a one-month
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group discounted bills receivables of
RMB50,759,000 to banks in exchange for cash. As at 31 December
2020, the bank borrowing of RMB26,090,000 was secured by a pledged
bank deposit provided by Merry Boom (the controlling shareholder of the
Company).

The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the end of reporting period
were as follows:

A Z_E_—F+"HA=+—H> AR
3,000,000tHER (MARMBEE) B
HEECERYTEREREEESRA
BERM BEEFEMNEI%TE AR
8,176,000t E R (U BTt E) HIGE
EEBERAD (FRABIERKRE) B %
—@EREZEARITEERSHHE

NZZZEF+ZA=+—H &*&HA
‘R 1T AL IR A R 150,759,0007T BY FE UK
SIS PBERE R _E-FE+ "4
=+—H > RITERAR26,090,00075
BEE (AATZERER) BENBIER
IRITIERMEIR I o

RIREBRBOBITERERFRNOT :

2021 2020
—EZ—F ETERE
Bank borrowings: IRITE™M
- Secured —HiEH - 1.13%-3.12%
— Unsecured — g 3.65% - 4.3%  3.65% — 4.35%

RENBRMIERAIRAR
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AP ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

28

29

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

Deferred income 28 REWA
2021 2020
—E—F —ECREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREBTT
At 1 January w—B—H 303,043 349,074
Additions for the year FEREEM 19,293 12,790
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEE#HE (sk6) (62,925) (58,821)
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 259,411 303,043
Deferred income mainly represents government grants or subsidies received FEWAFEERERGEEEEMK
for the development of the production complex and storage facilities as well 7 5 5% i LA Ko i 9T 18 B T BVAS B9 U #
as research projects. BhE ARG o
Trade and other payables 29 EBZKREMEMNR
2021 2020
—E-—F oS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFIT
Trade payables =RZY INEAN 187,347 180,991
Bills payables e % 8,428 8,574
Total trade and bills payables B A B BB 195,775 189,565
Payable for construction and equipment BEKRZERMR 91,715 219,969
Accrued expenses FEstRE X 53,300 71,518
Payroll and welfare payables B TEREF 25,652 26,949
Other tax payables Hh I RIE 18,072 13,156
Earnest money BHRES 22,504 15,429
Sales commission HEME 3,364 4,576
Others Hith 5,920 6,580
416,302 547,742

As at 31 December 2021, bills payables are secured by bank acceptance
bills of RMB8,428,000 (note 20). As at 31 December 2020, bills payables
are secured by bank acceptance bills of RMB4,256,000 (note 20) and bank

deposits of RMB4,353,000 (note 23(a)).

AR —F+ZRB=+—H EGE
HELUANR 18,428,000t MU SR1T & R E 4%
(FF3E20) 1EHEIF- R T _FTF+_H
=+—H > EAIEEREUARY4,256,000
THIRITARERE (WH5H20) RARK
4,353,0007c MY ER1T7Z RN (M 5E23(a)) 1EIE
o
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29

30

31
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HE_ S —F+_A=+—HLEEE

Trade and other payables (Continued) 29 EBIZRHEMEMNR E
The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables based on UM RBRERREZ A RRENER
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: RIREE ZE H ARV EREC D AT !
2021 2020
T —F —EBTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFT
0 - 60 days ZEX+H 117,635 123,630
61 - 90 days At+—=h+8 28,764 31,355
Over 90 days h+BUE 49,376 34,580
195,775 189,565
The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2020: 80 days). The RENTHEEHASH CEIEE
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all 80H) - AEEEHIEMHEEME B
payables are paid within the credit time frame. FoOUBRAMEERNRNEREEHNE
/Ao
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly denominated in B REMEMHINEEEEZEUAR
RMB. A
Advances from customers 30 EFRB®
Revenue recognised that was included in advances from customers at the REPFAZLBRANEHIBWES A
beginning of the year was RMB329,665,000 (2020: RMB171,596,000). R#5329,665,00070 (2 =ZF : AR
171,596,0007T) °
Employee housing deposits 31 BIEERSES

Employee housing deposits are carried at amortised cost.

The Group offers residential accommodation to the staff with the aim of
promoting long service with the Group. Staff are required to place housing
deposits to the Group for the use of such accommodation. The employee
housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and repayable upon the return
of the staff quarters by the employee or termination of employment.

RENBRMIERAIRAR
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32

33

34

HE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HIL=EE

Commitments 32 KiE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not REAFEGERFEITNEREREEE
recognised as liabilities is as follows: HNERERBEZNT :
2021 2020
—E—F —ECREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREBTT
Capital contribution H&E 78,000 78,000
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB NEE 32,771 27,790
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has provided REEZ-—F+Z8=+—HIHF
the remaining capital contribution of RMB8,000,000 to Tiangong (note 18). E® AEEEAAITREFGFHEAR
#£8,000,0007t (HizE18) o
Share-based payment transactions 33 URMIZEARENRS
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was KRR ZE—tFERB+ N EHRMNE
adopted on 19 May 2017 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards REHESTE (TRERESE)) BENABE
to directors, employees and other eligible persons. The Share Option Scheme E-BEERHEMEER A TR BEISE
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the date on B o FERGREST IR I B RGBT B iR 2 B
which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum number of shares ST+ FERNBM - BITEIREEREST 2
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted T 722 B R 47 BY A fa] EL Ath S G 7 51 81 B9
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share FrE BB RITHERRET A
option scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% THRMNEE LR &HFBBIBEARQT
of issued capital of the Company from time to time. AEFE TR ABI30% ©
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no options have been granted under the N B2 FRZIZEZEF+ZA
Share Option Scheme. =+—H> BEREERETER BT
RERG i o
Related party transactions 34 [BMEAXRS

Save for the disclosure in note 27, the related party transactions including
remuneration for key management personnel of the Group are as follows:

BRICISE27TAIINEE SN AR EE
BEEBASHMNBESIZNT :

2021 2020

b S - —EOEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AE®ETIT

Short-term benefits EHREF 1,750 1,750
Pension scheme contributions BARTEEIHER 170 134
1,920 1,884

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —Z——&&% []5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ERERMNEE
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35 Statement of financial position of the Company 35 EATRBFBIKAR
2021 2020
T —F i S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBRATNKE 159,378 159,378
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NI 504,313 527,037
Prepayments (N 383 378
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 9,171 3,299
513,867 530,714
Total assets BEEHE 673,245 690,092
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZxAF)#H A E(LHExE
Share capital [IZN 532,500 532,500
Reserves (note) EE (55 132,569 131,352
Total equity REm4aEE 665,069 663,852
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REIBEE
Borrowings EEN 8,176 26,090
Accrued expense FEFTRZ - 150
Total liabilities BEE%E 8,176 26,240
Total equity and liabilities ERKRAaRERE 673,245 690,092
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H#Z-ZE_—F+_F=+—HIEFE

35 Statement of financial position of the Company 35 EAFMBBRAR &
(Continued)
Note:  Movement of the reserves of the Company ek AREHEED
Special Capital Retained
reserve reserve profit Total
HRGE BAMHE REFH wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETFT AREFT
At 1 January 2020 RZZZEF—-HF—H 108,651 16,730 3,546 128,927
Share buy-backs BEIRM - - (47) (47)
Profit for the year REERH - - 36,322 36,322
2020 final dividend ZEITERPRE - - (33,850) (33,850)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 BWZZ-THE+-A=+—HEK
B —%—A—H 108,651 16,730 5,971 131,352
Profit for the year KEEFHE - - 46,158 46,158
2021 final dividend T -FRBRE - - (44,941) (44,941)
At 31 December 2021 RIZ—F+Z“HA=+—H 108,651 16,730 7,188 132,569
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L FEMBHEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

“E-f% CE2ZF Z-hE ZE-N\E CE—tf

Operating results e
(RMB’000) (AE¥F )
Revenue WA 11,639,315 8,892,261 6,750,401 5,073,489 4,694,541
Gross profit EH 952,211 559,775 353,004 443,164 619,543
Operating profits &R 510,539 261,500 105,392 271,232 496,453
Profit for the year REERE 402,830 207,039 98,096 238,035 304,061
Profit attributable to shareholders BREayilbe 345,507 190,120 96,847 230,897 388,167
Assets and Liabilities BERERE
(RMB’000) (N5 o)

Total assets waE 4,719,159 4,567,492 4,424,974 4,212,055 3,538,106
Total ligbilities ek 1,227,137 1,433,359 1,463,827 1,285,712 791,083
Non-controlling interests P 214,059 156,826 139,907 138,658 131,520
Shareholder’s equity BEER 3,277,963 2,977,307 2,821,240 2,787,685 2,615,503
Per share data sk
Net assets per share (RMB) SRFEE (ARER) 0.58 0.52 0.49 0.49 0.46
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SREN ARED) 5.77 3.17 1.62 3.85 6.47
Dividends per share (HK$ cents) SREE GBI 0.69 0.90 0.62 1.20 1.20
Dividend payout ratio RELLE 12.0% 28.4% 34.3% 27.3% 15.0%
Share price as at the year ended (HK$) FREE (B 0.212 0.156 0.143 0.169 0.305
Note: 5T -

The above summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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